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His Majesty King Abdullah II Bin Al Hussein





Board of Directors

The Securities Depository Center’s Board of Directors is composed of:

• Two private sector members with expertise in legal, financial and economic fields,appointed 

by the Board of Commissioners

1. Mr. Abdul Hamid Alhayari Chairman 

2. Mr. Samir Mohammad Habib Deputy Chairman 

• Three members representing public shareholding companies

1. Mr. Mohammad Bahjat Belbeisi Member 

(The Real Estate & Investment Portfolio) 

2. Dr. Waleed Wael Zurub Member 

(Jordan French Insurance) 

3. Mr. Osama Darwish Al Khalili Member 

(Middle East Complex For Engineering, Electronics & Heavy Industries) 

• Two members representing brokers and companies licensed to perform custodial activities

1. Mr. Kamel Hamad Al-Zereh Member 

(Union Bank for Savings and Investment)

2. Mr. Walid Yacoub Al Najjar Member 

(Tanmia Securities Co) 

Mr. Samir Fahed Jaradat Chief Executive Officer

• The above Board of Directors was formed on November 17, 2005. 

• The previous Board of Directors was composed of:
Mr. Abdul Hamid Alhayari as chairman from 25/8/2005 to 16/11/2005.
Mr. Loay Mismar as chairman from 24/11/2002 to 23/8/2005.
Mr. Samir Habib  as  deputy chairman from 24/11/2002 to 16/11/2005.
Dr. “Mohammad Ghaith” Mismar representing Arab Bank as Board Member from 24/11/2002 to 16/11/2005.
Mr. Ayman Abu Shanab representing The Jordanian Electric Power as Board Member from 24/11/2002 to 16/11/2005.
Dr. Waleed Zurub representing Jordan French Insurance as Board Member from 24/11/2002 to 16/11/2005.
Mr. Kamel Al-Zereh representing Union Bank for Savings & Investment as Board Member from 24/11/2002 to 16/11/2005.
Mr. Wajdi Makhamrah representing Jordan Investment & Finance Bank as Board Member from 19/7/2005 to 16/11/2005.
Mr. Rajai Kossous representing Jordan Investment & Finance Bank as Board Member from 24/11/2002 to 18/7/2005.
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Statement of the Chairman
of the Board of Directors

Distinguished Members of the Securities Depository Center’s General Assembly...

On my behalf, and on behalf of my colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, it is a 
great pleasure to welcome you today to the seventh annual ordinary meeting of your 
General Assembly which has always had a constructive participation in all that concerns the 
Securities Depository Center’s objectives. I would also like to welcome the representative of 
the Jordan Securities Commission.

On this occasion, I am pleased to submit to you the Securities Depository Center (SDC)’s sixth 
annual report, which includes the SDC’s most important accomplishments and achievements 
in 2005, the SDC’s future plan for 2006, the financial statements and some statistical data.

Distinguished Members of the General Assembly:

During 2005, the SDC completed all the functions assigned to it by executing the final stage 
of its main responsibilities through the implementation of clearing and settlement on the 
basis of Delivery versus Payment where delivery of sold securities is against payment of 
funds.

The SDC transferred the ownership of deposited securities from the seller’s account 
maintained by the selling broker to the buyer’s account maintained by the buying broker 
via book-entry in accordance with the daily trading file delivered to the SDC by the Amman 
Stock Exchange (ASE). The financial settlements of trades were executed through the Real 
Time Gross Settlement System - Jordan (RTGS-JO) at the Central Bank of Jordan (Settlement 
Bank) by bank transfers from the brokers’ bank accounts to the SDC settlement account 
at the Central Bank of Jordan (CBJ); consequently, the SDC transferred these funds to the 
brokers’ bank accounts (previously provided to the SDC) who should receive those funds.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

By the end of the year 2004, the paper environment was replaced by the electronic 
environment with the transfer of the shareholders’ registers and the deposit of securities at 
the SDC. The authentication of the ownership of securities became via book-entries recorded 
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in the SDC registers so that these registers became the legal proof of the shareholders’ 
ownership of securities deposited at the SDC. The SDC continued the depositing process for 
securities and shareholders where the number of deposited shareholders reached (291,168) 
shareholder who own (3,385,144,304) shares with a percentage of (94.4%) of the number of 
securities registered in (212) register of (3,585,230,529) issued shares.

As you are well aware, the year 2005 witnessed remarkable activities in the preliminary 
market; consequently, the SDC registered and deposited the shares of all public shareholding 
companies who joined as SDC members during the year; in addition to executing corporate 
actions such as increase of capital as a result of capitalization of reserves and/or accumulated 
deferred profits, capitalization of debt or private subscription to company shareholders or 
otherwise. The SDC also executed the decrease of capital for some public shareholding 
companies and the mergers that occurred between companies. 

In 2005, the SDC executed the clearing and settlement of trading contracts executed 
through the ASE where approximately (2.5) billion shares were transferred by virtue of (2.4) 
million trading contracts with a market value of (JOD 16.8) billion. The SDC also received 
payments of approximately (JOD 2.9) billion which represent the amounts due by brokers 
to settlement and were paid through the RTGS-JO to the brokers who should receive those 
funds with accuracy, speed and efficiency. 

The SDC continued providing services to investors in Jordanian securities by transferring 
the ownership of securities for transactions exempted from trading where (26) thousand 
transaction was executed with a total value of approximately (JOD 940) million.

Distinguished Members of the General Assembly:

On the cooperation level with external organizations, the SDC participated in a number 
of meetings and conferences such as the annual meetings of the Association of National 
Numbering Agencies (ANNA) and the meeting of  Federation of Euro-Asian Stock Exchanges 
(FEAS) in which the SDC became an affiliate  member. The SDC also participated in the annual 
conference of the International Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO); in addition 
to participating in the 8th Conference of Central Securities Depositories (CSD8) held in the 
United Sates of America in which the Africa & Middle East Depositories Association (AMEDA) 
was established and the SDC was elected as deputy chairman.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

As for future plans, the SDC will put in place a strategic plan for the upcoming three years 
(2006-2009) which will take into consideration the internal dimension. This plan will increase 
the efficiency of the SDC in serving its members and increase the efficiency of the SDC’s 
performance and develop it to further distinguish the SDC in  providing services to investors 
in Jordanian securities. 

The plan will also take into consideration the external dimension by increasing cooperation 
with national institutions; in addition to regional and international organizations related to 
the functions and responsibilities of the SDC.
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Distinguished Members of the General Assembly:

In closing, I would like to extend my thanks and gratitude to the SDC’s members including 
public shareholding companies, brokers and custodians for their continuous and productive 
cooperation with the SDC which has had a positive effect enabling the SDC to implement 
clearing and  settlement in an efficient and effective manner.

I would also like to extend my thanks and gratitude to the Jordan Securities Commission 
and the Amman Stock Exchange for their continuous cooperation with the SDC and their 
productive efforts in developing the Jordan capital market. I would also like to express my 
thanks to you for your concern and constant cooperation to develop this institution to 
achieve more accomplishments and prosperity.

May God guide us to the prosperity of Jordan and to achieve more accomplishments and 
develop the services provided by the SDC under the leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah 
II Bin Al-Hussein.

Abdul Hamid Alhayari
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Accomplishments and Achievements
of the SDC during 2005

The Securities Law No. (76) of 2002 specified the main responsibilities of the SDC as 

follows:

• Register, safe-keep, and transfer ownership of securities.
• Deposit securities.
• Clear and settle securities.

The SDC continued its efforts for development and organization; in addition to executing 
the responsibilities assigned to it where the year 2005 witnessed a number of important 
accomplishments regarding the SDC’s functions and legislations. 

Following is a review of the SDC achievements and important accomplishments during the 
year 2005.

Registration of Securities: 

Securities are registered at the SDC pursuant to the Securities Law and the Instructions of 
Registration, Deposit and Settlement of Securities for the Year 2004.

In 2005, the SDC registered the shares of (17) seventeen new public shareholding companies 
with a total of (139.8) million issued shares and a nominal value of (JOD 149.3) million.

The SDC also registered bonds issued by the Government of the Hashemite Kingdom of 
Jordan where (5) issues were registered with a nominal value of (JOD 500) million, (3) issues 
by the Water Authority of Jordan with a nominal value of (JOD 64) million and an issue by 
the Agricultural Credit Corporation with a nominal value of (JOD 10) million; in addition to 
a corporate bond issued by the Jordan Mortgage Refinance with a nominal value of (JOD 5) 
million.

Whereas, a number of public shareholding companies have increased or decreased their 
capital or merged during 2005, the SDC registered all new shares arising from the increase in 
capital due to subscriptions executed by (59) public shareholding companies with a total of 
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(309.8) million shares; in addition to the registration of the shares as a result of capitalization 
of reserves or profits or capitalization of debts, executed by (53) public shareholding 
companies with a total of (159.3) million shares. The SDC also decreased the number of 
shares registered at the SDC to (30.1) million shares as a result of (9) public shareholding 
companies decreasing their capital.

In addition, the SDC updated the shareholders’ registers and the number of registered shares 
as a result of (3) shareholding companies merging with each other or merging with private 
limited companies. 

Thus, the number of shares of public shareholding companies registered at the SDC as of 
31/12/2005 was (3,585.2) million shares.
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Client Identification and Account Set-up:

The measures adopted by the SDC since 22/10/2000 require the broker, upon trading in 
securities for any client whether selling or buying, to identify the client and establish an 
account for him on the SDC’s database as a one-time event, where a unique number is issued 
for each investor called the “SDC Investor Number”.

The importance of this number is due to the fact that the investor is known throughout 
the SDC’s electronic system by this number and it connects the investor’s ownership of 
securities. The SDC can, depending on this number, provide the investor with his securities’ 
ownership balances in all public shareholding companies and can also provide him with 
a statement of account that shows his trading activities in all securities during the period 
specified in the application.

It is worth noting that investors are identified and their accounts are established in any of 

the following methods:

• First:   Through the broker or custodian. The investor submits an application to the broker 
or custodian to be identified and his account established on the SDC’s database. 
The application should include the identification document for the natural person 
or the registration certificate for judicial entities. The application should also 
include the full address. In this case, the investor is identified and two accounts are 
established, the first in the central registry and the second on the SDC’s database 
of the broker or custodian through which the account was established.

• Second: Directly through the SDC. The investor submits an application to the SDC to be 
identified and a securities’ account established for him. The application should 
include the documents mentioned above and the full address. In this case, the 
investor is identified and only one account is established for him in the central 
registry. The investor has to submit an application to the broker to establish an 
account with that broker if he wants to trade in securities whether by selling or 
buying.

In 2005, the SDC executed the identification and account establishment on the SDC’s 
database of (56,025) investors; thus, the total number of identified investors on the SDC’s 
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database reached at the end of the year (176,703) investors; whereas, the number of identified 
investors on the SDC’s database as of 31/12/2004 was (120,678) investors. This represents an 
increase of (46.4%); in addition, (72,296) accounts were established at the SDC during 2005; 
thus, the number of accounts at the SDC as of 31/12/2005 was (168,206) account.

Following is a table that illustrates the identified investors on the SDC’s database as of 
31/12/2005 in comparison with those identified on the SDC’s database as of 31/12/2004.

Category

Investor Type
Jordanian Arab Foreign Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Companies 2,033 1,565 183 112 107 76 2,323 1,753

Funds 100 81 15 11 127 108 242 200

Institutions 35 31 4 2 6 2 45 35

Governments 2 2 5 4 1 1 8 7

Associations 33 12 4 0 0 0 37 12

Municipalities 23 10 0 0 0 0 23 10

Waqf 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0

Organizations 0 0 1 0 1 1 2 1

Religious Sects 3 1 0 0 0 0 3 1

Total 2,229 1,702 213 129 242 188 2,684 2,019

Natural

Person
Individuals 159,037 110,564 12,917 6,773 1,413 816 173,367 118,153

 Joint  Joint 624 486 23 16 5 4 652 506

Grand Total 161,890 112,752 13,153 6,918 1,660 1,008 176,703 120,678

50,000
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150,000

200,000

250,000

2004 20042005 2005 20052004
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Clearing & Settlement:

As of January 2, 2005, the SDC applied clearing and settlement measures for trading 
contracts executed at Amman Stock Exchange (ASE) on the basis of Delivery versus Payment 
(DvP) where delivery of sold securities  is against payment of funds. DvP is considered an 
important international standard applied in capital markets.

The process of clearing and settlement became as follows:

• Securities Ownership transfer

Ownership of deposited securities is transferred from the selling client’s account with the 
selling broker to the buying client’s account with the buying broker via book-entries in 
accordance with the daily trading file delivered to the SDC by the ASE where the securities 
remain suspended in the buyer’s account until the fulfillment of the settlement measures 
and payment of their value and no transfer or pledge is permitted during that period.

Trading contracts are either accepted or suspended. A trading contract is suspended if the 
number of sold securities registered in the selling client’s account maintained by the selling 
broker is insufficient to execute the sale or the number of sold securities is subject to any 
ownership restriction (pledge or lien). 

The broker is notified electronically of any suspended trading contract where he must 
remove the causes of the suspension within the specified timeframe, the SDC withholds 
the amounts that represent the value of the suspended trading contracts until the broker 
removes the causes of the suspension; otherwise, the Settlement Guarantee Fund takes the 
necessary measures to buy the securities in deficit out of the ASE. The  SDC is entitled to take 
a number of measures against the defaulting broker which includes suspending the broker 
from trading and imposing a lien on securities owned by that broker.

The number of trading contracts that were settled by the SDC in 2005 was (2,391,169) where 
(2,514.4) million shares were transferred with a total value of (JOD 16,153.4) million. The SDC 
executed (4) four buy-in transactions through the Settlement Guarantee Fund as a result of 
the selling brokers’ failure to remove the causes of the suspension of the trading contracts 
executed by them within (T+1).
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Following is a table that illustrates the number of trading contracts, securities and market 
value for 2005 in comparison with 2004 for shares and bonds: 

Security Description 2005 2004
Increase 

(Decrease) %

Shares

Number of Trading Contracts 2,391,363 1,177,715 103.05

Number of Shares 2,578,104,096 1,337,903,435 92.69

Market Value 16,840,624,897.31 3,790,613,672.49 344.27

Bonds

Number of Trading Contracts 31 114 (72.81)

Number of Bonds 3,354 10,355 (67.61)

Market Value 3,135,705.20 6,031,855.84 (48.01)
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Following is a summary of the issued trading contacts according to the type of security 
classified by sector from 1/1/2005 to 31/12/2005.

Security Type Economical
Sector

Number Number of
Contracts

Number of
Securities

Total Value Number of
Investors

Banks 15 501,142 511,983,364 6,039,245,451.63 30,695

Insurance 24 49,459 55,052,710 179,825,357.50 6,606

Shares Services 68 1,287,025 1,355,991,117 7,999,278,202.52 37,332

Industry 64 553,737 655,076,905 2,622,275,885.66 30,404

Total 171 2,391,363 2,578,104,096 16,840,624,897.31 105,037

Banks 3 8 3,073 2,126,906.30 10

Insurance 0 0 0 0.00 0

Bonds Services 4 7 142 339,858.50 9

Industry 5 16 139 668,940.40 16

Total 12 31 3,354 3,135,705.20 35

Grand Total 183 2,391,394 2,578,107,450 16,843,760,602.51 105,072
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• Financial settlements

Financial settlement of securities trading transactions are executed via the Real Time Gross 
Settlement System-Jordan (RTGS-JO) at the Central Bank of Jordan.

The SDC conducts the clearing process to determine the amounts that the broker must pay 
or receive in accordance with all the trading contracts executed by that broker by subtracting 
the total amount of his securities’ purchases from the total amount of his securities’ sales for 
the trading day. 

The amount that the broker must pay is divided into:

1. The liquidity reserve amount which represents the difference between the settlement 
amount and half of the broker’s contribution amount in the Settlement Guarantee 
Funds.  The liquidity reserve amount is paid on (T+1).

2. The settlement amount which represents the difference between the net to pay and 
the liquidity reserve amount.

Financial settlements between brokers are conducted through the SDC by bank transfers 
from the brokers’ accounts to the SDC’s settlement account at the Central Bank of Jordan 
(Settlement Bank). Consequently, the SDC transfers these funds to the net to receive brokers’ 
accounts at the banks previously provided to the SDC.

If the broker does not pay the liquidity reserve amount or the settlement amount within 
the specified timeframes, he is considered in breach of his obligations and the SDC takes 
the necessary measures to fulfill the financial settlement through the Settlement Guarantee 
Fund. The SDC may take measures against the defaulting  broker which include suspending 
the broker from trading.
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Following is a diagram of the clearing and settlement measures:

Following is a table that illustrates the clearing and settlement transactions executed via the 
SDC during 2005:

Amounts Received 2,918,501,230.67

1. Liquidity Reserve  (T+1) 1,707,515,516.88

2. Settlement Amount (T+2) 1,210,985,713.79

Amounts Paid 2,918,501,230.67

1. Settlement  (T+2) 2,910,675,910.94

2. Suspended Contracts (T+4) 7,825,319.73

Settlement Guarantee Fund:

The Settlement Guarantee Fund was established by virtue of Article (90) of the Securities 
Law No. (76) of 2002. Its objectives include:

1. Covering the cash deficit of a Fund member in connection with his purchases of 
securities.

2. Covering the deficits in the securities account of a Fund member in connection with 
his sales of securities on the market.
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The Fund has a legal personality with financial autonomy and is managed by the SDC Board 
of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer. Its members include brokers and dealers. The 
Internal By-Law of the Settlement Guarantee Fund became effective as of 31/12/2004 where 
the Settlement Guarantee Fund is considered the legal and factual successor of the Financial 
Brokers’ Guarantee Fund.

The contributions of the members of the Fund are divided into cash contributions and 
bank guarantees. The contributions are calculated based on specific formulas and are re-
calculated periodically. The total amount of the members contributions to the Fund as of the 
end of 2005 was (JOD 45,165,761) of which (JOD 17,741,761) as cash contributions and 
(JOD 27,424,000) as bank guarantees. 

Inheritance and Family Transfers:

The SDC continued to execute inheritance transfers where securities are transferred from the 
deceased’s account to the accounts of his rightful heirs in accordance with the documents 
and papers accepted by the SDC. In 2005, the SDC executed (19,447) transaction where 
(23,075,090) shares and bonds were transferred representing a total market value of 
(JOD 668,544,394.53).

The SDC also executed family transfers that occur between ascendants and descendants and 
between spouses. The number of executed transfers was (2,961) where (7,879,918) shares 
and bonds were transferred representing a total market value of (JOD 139,662,634.34).

Following is a table that illustrates the inheritance and family transfers executed in 2005 on 
shares and bonds in comparison with 2004:

Transfer Type Security Description 2005 2004
Increase

(Decrease) %

Inheritance 

Number of Transfer Deeds 19,429 13,132 47.95

Shares Number of Shares 23,074,760 8,916,518 158.79

Market Value 668,316,695.93 57,436,056.73 1063.58

Bonds

Number of Transfer Deeds 18 73 (75.34)

Number of Bonds 330 5,068 (93.49)

Market Value 227,698.60 71,766.50 217.28

Family 

Number of Transfer Deeds 2,961 1,051 181.73

Shares Number of Shares 7,879,918 8,332,765 (5.43)

Market Value 139,662,634.34 25,521,373.73 447.24

Bonds

Number of Transfer Deeds 0 2 -

Number of Bonds 0 12 -

Market Value 0 12,540.00 -
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Transfers of Non-Traded Securities and Other Transfers:

The transactions executed during 2005 include the transfers of the ownership of non-traded 
securities at the ASE or securities suspended from listing or trading, transfers for the purpose 
of dividing joint ownership of securities, transfers that occur in accordance with the Law of 
the Government’s Acquisition of Monies that Reach Limitation and exempted transfers by 
virtue of a decision of the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC)’s Board of Commissioners.

The SDC executed (3,296) transaction for such type of transfers where (30,006,528) shares 
and bonds were transferred representing a total market value of (JOD 131,218,445.19).

Following is a table that illustrates the number of deeds, securities and market value of 
transactions executed in 2005 in comparison with 2004:

Security Description 2005 2004
Increase
(Decrease) %

Shares

Number of Deeds 3,292 1,514 117.44

Number of Shares 30,006,146 19,933,136 50.53

Market Value 130,125,475.19 30,728,853.25 323.46

Bonds

Number of Deeds 4 1 300

Number of Bonds 382 20 1810

Market Value 1,092,970.00 200,000.00 446.49

Ownership Restrictions:

In 2005, the SDC, as the only authorized entity, placed and released ownership restrictions 
(pledge, lien or freeze) on deposited securities.

Pledge restrictions are validated and placed directly against deposited securities by virtue of 
an application presented for this purpose. The SDC executed (1,576) pledge transaction on 
(116,487,820) shares; in addition to (1,406) release of pledge on (68,133,894) shares. 

In addition, the SDC in 2005 become responsible for placing and releasing liens on deposit 
securities in its registers upon notification by the competent official authorities, while the 
issuer still remained responsible for placing and releasing liens on non-deposited securities. 
The SDC executed (1,378) lien restriction on (22,051,554) shares and (1,386) release of lien 
on (50,046,211) shares. 
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Following is a table that illustrates the transactions according to type:

Transaction Type No, of  Transactions No. of  Securities

Pledge 1,576 116,487,820

Release of Pledge 1,406 68,133,894

Lien 1,378 22,051,554

Release of Lien 1,386 50,046,211

Total 5,746 256,719,479

The SDC also provided the service of freezing securities where the shareholder may freeze his 
securities in the SDC’s central registry; thus, preventing any SDC member from transferring 
these securities or conducting any transaction. The SDC placed (25) freeze and (20) release 
of freeze restriction.
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Authentication and Ownership Transfer of Securities at the Account Level:

Authentication and transfer of the ownership of securities is conducted at the account level 
in accordance with the Instructions of Registration, Deposit and Settlement of Securities 
for the Year 2004 where each investor has a number of securities accounts for the same 
security. The first account in the central registry and the other accounts are maintained by 
the brokers that the investor transacts with.

Securities are transferred between different accounts for the same investor in accordance 
with specific measures where the investor can transfer his securities from the central registry 
to his account maintained by the broker that he transacts with and vice versa. The broker 
may not sell any investor owned securities unless he ascertains that the securities to be 
sold are registered in the investor’s account and that these securities are not subject to any 
ownership restrictions. 

Following is a table that illustrates the transfer of shares between accounts and the number 
of shares that have been transferred in 2005 in comparison with 2004:

Transfer from Brokers to Central Registry Transfer from Central Registry to Brokers

2005 2004 2005 2004

No. of Executed Transfers 28,859 5,739 104,470 42,607

No. of Shares 306,034,689 82,887,375 598,277,144 346,729,604

Depositing Securities:

Public shareholding companies continued depositing their unauthenticated and non-
deposited shareholders at the SDC where the number of deposited shareholders at the SDC 
reached (291,168) shareholder representing (52.79%) of the total number of shareholders 
equaling (551,578). These deposited shareholders own (3,385,144,304) shares with a 
percentage of (94.42%) of issued shares and a total value of (JOD 26.6) billion. Whereas, in 
31/12/2004 the number of shareholders deposited at the SDC was (160,359) shareholders 
which represented (32%) of the total number of shareholders who owned (2,588,394,211)  
issued shares as of that date.

Following is a table that illustrates the number of shareholders and the number of deposited 
securities for (212) shareholders’ register as of 31/12/2005:

Deposited Non-Deposited Total Deposited %

No. of Shareholders 291,168 260,410 551,578 52.79

No. of Shares 3,385,144,304 200,086,225 3,585,230,529 94.42

Total Value 23,144,648,833.39 3,425,929,630.55 26,570,578,463.94 87.11
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Private Subscription System:

The SDC updated the electronic system “Securities’ Issuers” -private subscription-. This 
new technical update will enable public shareholding companies to authenticate private 
subscriptions directly on the SDC database which will make the process of registering the 
shares offered for increase of capital at the SDC faster in preparation of their listing at the 
ASE.

This new update will reduce the time and effort exerted by public shareholding companies 
in the preparation of the subscribers’ register and avoid mistakes in the preparation of the 
register;  in addition to making the share registration process at the SDC faster and will 
enable viewing the subscription process directly. 

Following are the main advantages of this system:

1. The SDC prepares the register of the company  shareholders who are entitled to 
subscribe to the shares as of the fifteenth day from the date of the JSC’s approval of 
the registration of the concerned shares.

2. The system calculates the number of shares that the shareholder has a right to 
subscribe to according to  the percentage of increase of capital.

3. The system enables the pubic shareholding company to access the shareholders’ 
register who are entitled to subscribe and register the shares subscribed by each 
shareholder.

4. The system will not allow entering a number of subscribed shares above the number 
that the shareholder has a right to subscribe to.

Custodian System:

The SDC has developed an electronic system specifically for custodians called the “Custodian 
System” in order to enhance the role of custodians in the market and enable them to safe 
keep their clients’ securities in accounts under their direct control. 

The Custodian System will enable custodians to:

1. Identify clients and establish accounts for them on the SDC database.
2. Transfer client’s securities from the client’s central registry account to the client’s 

account under the custodian’s control.
3. Establish client accounts with brokers related to their accounts maintained by the 

custodian.
4. Transfer deposited securities from the client’s accounts with the broker to his account 

maintained by the custodian and vise versa.
5. Make enquiries regarding movements and balances of clients’ deposited securities.
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Following is a chart of the clearing and settlement measures between the broker and 
custodian:
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Securities’ Balance Enquires:

The SDC provided investors with services that enabled them to obtain ownership statements 
that show their balance in securities and the securities distribution in different accounts. The 
number of issued statements in 2005 was (4,289). The investor could also obtain transaction 
statements that show the transactions that occurred to his shares where the number of 
issued statements was (28) during the same year.

Main Servers:

A comprehensive study was prepared to increase the efficiency and capacity of the main 
servers of the central registry database to observe the incremental needs and requirements 
of the SDC members. The study included the technical specifications for the main servers 
and consequently a  tender was released. The new servers will be put in operation as of 
the beginning of 2006. A backup server was also added to guarantee the continuity of the 
operation of the central registry database. In addition, a main server was added to operate  
the new SDC website on the internet.

Local and Wide Area Network (LAN & WAN):

Due to the increase in the SDC’s members who can access the SDC’s database, the SDC 
developed its LAN & WAN through the adoption of new technology to provide the most 
advanced communication methods for all SDC members and accommodate the increasing 
number of communication lines. The number of SDC members linked to the SDC network 
increased to (224) members distributed in all parts of the Kingdom whereas the number of 
members linked to the SDC network was (140) last year.

With regard to the local area network (LAN), the SDC finished developing and updating 
the LAN to raise the intranet to gigabit and increase the security level by using firewalls 
and improving control tools using Intrusion Dedication Systems (IDS) and raising the 
communication capacity programs that connect members to the SDC network.

As for the wide area network (WAN), the SDC also developed and updated the WAN by 
replacing the shared equipment in the capital market building and housing bank complex 
(the Backup Site) with new and developed equipment to serve the capital market institutions 
and its members. 

Technical Support for SDC Members:

In 2005, the SDC provided technical support for a large number of its members in the field 
of information technology with regard to connection to the SDC; in addition to updating 
the SDC’s electronic systems and downloading them on the members’ computers through 
the intranet.
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Electronic Mailbox:

In 2005, the SDC assigned an electronic mailbox for each member and other entities to 
facilitate and accelerate the process for members in receiving correspondences andcirculars 
in electronic format to allow them to take the necessary measures.

The mailbox was activated to all members and officially applied to send SDC’s correspondences 

and memos to its members through the internet and the intranet.

Training:

Since the SDC believes in the importance of sustaining efficient human resources, a number 
of employees participated in training courses and seminars in management, accounting, 
computer and languages, inside the Kingdom and abroad; in addition to the training 
courses and seminars related to the SDC’s operations in particular and the capital market 
in general. 

The SDC also participated in the annual training course of the financial brokers held at 
the Institute of Banking Studies whether by sending employees to attend the course or 
presenting lectures to introduce the SDC. In addition, employees attended a number of 
workshops. The SDC also supported a number of its employee to get high level professional 
certificate in the information technology field (CCNP).

Awareness of the SDC:

The SDC has, through local weekly and monthly publications, informed the local and 
international community of its role in serving investors and participants in the Jordan capital 
market.

In addition, the SDC participated in a number of workshops and seminars especially the 
workshop organized by the JSC for Jordanian judges on the legal and legislative aspects of 
the operations of the capital market institutions, where the SDC presented the important 
technical and legal issues of the SDC’s operations. The SDC also participated in a workshop 
on developing the Arabian capital markets that was organized by the Arabian Monetary 
Fund by giving a lecture on the supervision and monitoring of capital markets. Lectures 
were also presented to the public to educate them about the SDC, its operations and inform 
them of the latest developments of its electronic systems and applications.
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Cooperation with Arab and International Institutions:

The SDC continued its interaction with the outside community through participating in 
conferences and annual meetings such the meeting of the Union of Arab Capital Markets 
and the general assembly meetings of the Association of National Numbering Agencies 
(ANNA).
 
On the cooperation with external organizations level, the SDC participated in a number of 
meetings and conferences such as the Federation of Euro-Asian Stock Exchanges (FEAS) 
meeting in which the SDC has become an affiliate member. The SDC also participated in a 
delegation consisting of capital market institutions that visited Paris Bourse and Stockholm 
Stock Exchange to view the trading and surveillance systems used by those exchanges.

The SDC also participated in the 8th Conference of Central Securities Depositories (CSD8) held 
in the U.S.A, in which an association of central securities depositories in the Africa & Middle 
East was established and called the “Africa & Middle East Depositories Association (AMEDA)” 
was established and the SDC was elected as deputy chairman. This association aims is to 
enhance the efficient cooperation between depository centers and exchange information 
between them. The SDC also participated in the annual conference of the International 
Organization of  Securities Commissions (IOSCO) that was held in Sri Lanka.
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Future Plan

Pledgee System

The SDC made a number of updates to the Pledgee System in order to facilitate the process 
of placing and releasing pledges on deposited securities. The SDC will complete the updates 
and provide the banks (who are SDC members)  with this system to allow them to better 
serve their clients.

Update SDC Website

The SDC is updating its website to provide further information and new services regarding 
the capital market in general and the SDC in specific. It will provide statistical data of interest 
to investors and researchers with the purpose of enhancing transparency and providing 
investors with information.

In addition, the SDC will provide investors, through its website, with an important service 
that will enable them to observe their investments in securities in a fast and easy manner, 
through:

• Inquiring about their balances of shares and their distribution in different accounts.
• Inquiring about their ownership balances and movements that occur to those shares.

Document Management System 

The SDC will implement an electronic system to manage and maintain documents for the 
purpose of increasing the storage capacity of official documents, their fast retrieval and 
work flow between the SDC departments to increase the efficiency of the SDC and serve its 
members and investors in Jordanian securities. 

Disaster Recovery Site

The SDC will move the location of the disaster recovery site from its current location to 
another location to guarantee the maintenance of the information and its fast retrieval in 
emergency cases.
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Auditor’s Report

AM/10242

To the General Assembly

Securities Depository Center
Amman - Jordan

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets, liabilities and accumulated surplus 
of the Securities Depository Center (established by a special decree) as of December 31, 2005, 
and the related statements of revenues and expenditures, changes in accumulated surplus 
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Center’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those 
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements 
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the assets, liabilities and accumulated surplus of the Securities Depository Center as of 
December 31, 2005, and its revenues and expenditures and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards.
  
Amman - Jordan                    Saba & Co.

February 27, 2006
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SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CENTER 
(ESTABLISHED BY A SPECIAL DECREE)

AMMAN - JORDAN

Statement of Assets, Liabilities And Accumulated Surplus

December 31

2005 2004

Assets JD JD

Current assets:

Cash on hand and at banks (Note 3) 19,564,340 4,022,876

Accounts receivable (Note 4) 48,451 83,542

Other debit balances (Note 6) 29,479 18,536

Total current assets 19,642,270 4,124,954

Intangible assets - net (Note 7) 135,134 48

Fixed assets (Note 5):

Fixed assets - at cost 3,051,061 2,229,156

Less: accumulated depreciation 1,134,174 634,495

Net book value of fixed assets 1,916,887 1,594,661

Total assets 21,694,291 5,719,663

Liabilities and accumulated surplus

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable (Note 8) 150,224 1,560

Other credit balances (Note 9) 42,118 55,979

Total current liabilities 192,342 57,539

End of service indemnity 103,779 0

Deferred revenue (grants and aid) (Note 10) 135,084 36,123

Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus (general reserve) 8,263,086 5,626,001

Special reserve (Note 11) 13,000,000 0

Total accumulated surplus 21,263,086 5,626,001

Total liabilities and accumulated surplus 21,694,291 5,719,663

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these statements.
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SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CENTER 
(ESTABLISHED BY A SPECIAL DECREE)

AMMAN - JORDAN

Statements of Revenues and Expenditures

For the year ended

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Revenues:

Commissions of securities transfer of ownership (Note 13) 15,017,180 3,254,105

Charges, fees and fines (Note 14) 444,906 88,276

Annual membership fees (Note 12) 1,012,655 289,708

Subscription fees (Note 12) 92,062 14,750

Interest income 378,557 59,003

Revenue from settlement guarantee fund management - Net 31,279 0

Other income 5,798 11,992

Total revenue 16,982,437 3,717,834

Deduct : general and administrative expenses (Note 15) 1,353,752 919,232

Surplus for the year 15,628,685 2,798,602

The accompanying notes constitute an integral  part of these statements.
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SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CENTER 
(ESTABLISHED BY A SPECIAL DECREE)

AMMAN - JORDAN

Statements of Changes in Accumulated Surplus
for the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Accumulated Surplus

(General Reserve)

Special 

Reserve
Total

JD JD JD

Year 2005

Balance-beginning of the year 5,626,001 0 5,626,001 

Change is recoverable value during the year * 8,400 0 8,400 

Surplus for the year 15,628,685 0 15,628,685 

Appropriated to special reserve (13,000,000) 13,000,000 0

Balance - end of the year 8,263,086 13,000,000 21,263,086 

Year 2004

Balance-beginning of the year 2,816,899 0 2,816,899 

Change is recoverable value during the year * 10,500 0 10,500 

Surplus for the year 2,798,602 0 2,798,602 

Balance-end of the year 5,626,001 0 5,626,001 

* The cumulative change in recoverable value represents the balance of the provision for  accounts 
receivable charged to the accumulated surplus during the year 2001 net of the amounts collected 
annually from the debts. 

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these statements.
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SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CENTER 
(ESTABLISHED BY A SPECIAL DECREE)

AMMAN - JORDAN

Statements of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended

December 31

2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities: JD JD

Surplus for the year 15,628,685 2,798,602

Depreciation of fixed assets 176,471 118,009

Recovered from provision for doubtful debts 8,400 10,500

Provision for doubtful debts 21,236 6,250

End of service indemnity 103,779 0

Net cash flows from operating activities before changes in  

working capital 
15,938,571 2,933,361

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 13,855 (58,906)

(Increase) in other debit balances (10,943) (4,581)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 148,664 (281,621)

(Decrease) increase in other credit balances (13,861) 8,207

Net cash flows from operating activities 16,076,286 2,596,460

Cash flows from investing activities:

Fixed and intangible assets - net (534,822) (82,450)

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (534,822) (82,450)

Net increase in cash 15,541,464 2,514,010

Cash on hand and at banks - beginning of the year 4,022,876 1,508,866

Cash on hand and at banks - end of the year 19,564,340 4,022,876

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SECURITIES DEPOSITORY CENTER 
(ESTABLISHED BY A SPECIAL DECREE)

AMMAN - JORDAN

1- General

a-  The Securities Depository Center was established according to the Provisional Securities 
Law No. (23) for the year 1997 which was amended according to the Provisional Securities 
Law No. (76) for the year 2002.

b- The Center is a non-profit public entity with a juristic personality that enjoys financial 
and administrative autonomy. As such, it is entitled to own and dispose of moveable and 
immoveable properties and conduct all legal dispositions necessary for the achievement 
of its objectives. 

c-  The Provisional Securities Law No. (76) for the year 2002 stipulates the main tasks of 
the Securities Depository Center, and it is the only authorized entity to conduct such 
activities: 

1- Registering, safe keeping, and transfer of ownership of securities.
2- Depositing securities.
3- Clearing and settling securities.

d- The Center’s revenue consists of members’ subscription, annual membership fees, 
securities trading and ownership transfer commissions and any other commissions, 
fees, and charges according to its by-laws. The Center’s money and rights in the hands 
of others are considered public property to be collected according to the Public Money 
Collection Law.

e-  The Center maintains an accumulated surplus (general reserve) to which its annual net 
surplus is appropriated every fiscal year, and the deficit in revenues and expenditures 
account is covered out of the accumulated surplus.

f-  According to the head of Income Tax department letter dated September 16, 2000, the 
Securities Depository Center was considered a non governmental public institution (semi 
governmental) and is tax exempted but is obligated to present the annual tax return and 
present all accounts and books to be reviewed by the Income Tax department to ensure 
that there are not any taxable income. 

 
g-  According to article (90) of the Securities law No. (76) for the year 2002 a fund called The 

Settlement Guarantee Fund was established, it enjoys juristic personality with financial 
independence, and is managed by the Center. The Center does not have any financial 
commitments to the fund.

h- The Center’s Board of Directors approved the financial statements in its meeting held on 
February 27, 2006.
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2- Accounting Policies

a- The financial statements have been prepared according to International Financial Reporting 

Standards and related interpretations,  as well as internal by laws and regulations approved 

by the Securities Commission.

The financial statements are stated in Jordanian Dinars. 

b- Changes in accounting policies
The IASB has issued amendments to the International Accounting Standards and 
new Financial Reporting Standards which became effective on January 1, 2005. These 
accounting amendments have no effect on the Center’s accumulated surplus.

c- Fixed assets are stated at cost and depreciated, except for land, using the straight-line 
method at annual rates ranging from 5% to 33.33%.

When the recoverable amount of a fixed assets is less than its net book value, the fixed 
assets amount is reduced to the recoverable amount, and the impairment loss is recorded 
in the statement of revenues and expenditures. 

d- Revenue from annual membership fees, subscription fees, commission on the transfer 
of ownership of securities, other commissions, interest, fees, and charges are recognized 
according to the accrual basis.

e- Grants for fixed assets purposes are booked as deferred revenues.  Further, depreciation 
of fixed assets funded out of these grants is taken to the statement of revenues and 
expenditures.  Similarly, an amount equivalent to this depreciation is amortized out of the 
deferred revenues of grants and taken to the statement of revenues and expenditures.

f- A provision for doubtful accounts is recorded when it is apparent to the management that 
the receivable is fully or partially uncollectible.  This provision is calculated based on the 
difference between the receivables book value and collectible amount of that receivable.   

g- The provision for the end of service indemnity was calculated according to article (84) of 
the Depository Center employees’ internal by-law for the year 2005 which was effective 
on November 1, 2005, a provision was recorded as of the balance sheet date.

h- Intangible Assets include Software and accounting programs that are stated at cost and 
are amortized over the estimated life, amortization expense is booked in the statement 
of revenues and expenditures.  Intangible assets are tested for impairment at the balance 
sheet date.  If there is evidence of impairment in the cash generating unit to which the 
intangible assets pertain, the amount of impairment is recorded in the statement of 
revenues and expenditures.

i- Estimates
Preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires estimating and assessing 
some items in the financial statements through the application of financial policies such 
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as estimating impairment in assets, provision for doubtful debts, and other provisions. 
Furthermore, management performs other estimates relating to uncertain items as 
of the date of the financial statements from which significant risks may arise and may 
cause material adjustments to the balances of assets and liabilities shown in the financial 
statements during the following fiscal year.
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3- Cash on Hand and at Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Cash on hand 0 237

Current accounts 17,148,670 1,792,482

Deposit accounts* 2,415,670 2,230,157

19,564,340 4,022,876

*Interest rates on fixed deposit accounts ranged from 2.5% to 4% (one month time deposits).

4- Accounts Receivable 
This item consists of the following:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Receivables from members and brokers* 78,392 57,904

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (64,848) (53,262)

Net Members Receivables 13,544 4,642

Receivables from employees 1,260 188

Clients deposits 0 77,014

Refundable deposits 1,507 1,382

Settlement Guarantee Fund 31,830 0

Other 310 316

48,451 83,542

* This item represents membership and subscription fees due from members until the end of the year 

2005 amounting to JD 76,722.  
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5.  Fixed Assets
This item consists of the following:

Year 2005
Land* Buildings* Equipment Computers Furniture Vehicles Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Cost:

Beginning balance 152,916 1,563,922 88,271 284,932 83,026 56,089 2,229,156 

Additions 0 9,815 43,637 688,536 16,013 116,186 874,187 

Disposals  0  0          0      (52,282)     0      0  (52,282)

Ending Balance 152,916 1,573,737 131,908 921,186 99,039 172,275 3,051,061 

Accumulated Depreciation:

Beginning balance  0 285,742 69,602 195,587 48,487 35,077 634,495 

Additions  0 78,195 9,677 428,284 13,375 14,237 543,768 

Disposals  0  0          0     (44,089)     0      0 (44,089)

Ending Balance  0 363,937 79,279 579,782 61,862 49,314 1,134,174 

Net Book Value

December 31, 2005
152,916 1,209,800 52,629 341,404 37,177 122,961 1,916,887 

Net Book Value

December 31, 2004
152,916 1,278,180 18,669 89,345 34,539 21,012 1,594,661 

Annual Depreciation 

Rate%
0 5 15 - 20 33.33 15 15

*  This item represents 25% ownership share in a building occupied  jointly by the Jordan Securities Commission, 

Amman  Stock Exchange and the Securities Depository Center.  The land on which the building is erected is 

registered in the name of Jordan Securities Commission.
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6- Other Debit Balances 
This item consists of the following:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Computers and equipment maintenance 11,803 7,791

Internet subscription 2,668 1,196

Prepaid health insurance 5,966 4,174

Legal consultant fees 1,667 1,667

Membership in RTGS- JO 1,334 0

Car insurance 2,795 370

Books, newspapers and subscriptions 192 827

Accrued revenue 1,964 2,223

Other 1,090 288

29,479 18,536

7- Intangible Assets - Net 
This item consists of Software and is as follows:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Beginning balance 85,553 85,553

Additions 360,918 0

Less: Accumulated amortization (311,337) (85,505)

135,134 48

8- Accounts Payable 
This item consists of the following: 

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Amman Stock Exchange 58,781 0

Technical computer service company 86,780 0

Suppliers payable 4,613 0

Other accounts payable 50 1,560

150,224 1,560
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9- Other Credit Balances 
This item consists of the following:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Board of Directors’ remuneration 32,334 32,857

Professional fees 4,060 2,000

Electricity 965 9,253

Maintenance expenses 0 2,764

Unearned revenue 4,200 7,677

Other expenses 559 1,428

42,118 55,979

10- Deferred Revenue (Grants and Aid)  
This item includes the following:

December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Grants and aid-fixed assets (Note 5) * 1,181,527 533,526

Less: Accumulated amortization  1,046,443 497,403

135,084 36,123

* The Center officially received machines and computers during 2005 from the US Aid 
program (AMIR2) in the value of JD 692,340.  The Center has already received these assets 
during the period from 2002 to 2004.

** Deferred revenue is amortized with an amount equal to the depreciation of the fixed 
assets financed by these grants.

11- Special Reserve

The Board of Directors decided in its meeting held on February 27, 2006 to appropriate JD 
13,000,000 of net surplus for the year ended December 31, 2005 and transfer it to the special 
reserve for the purpose of constructing the building, the site and the branches of the Jordan 
National Financial Center in addition to the renovation of its fixed assets. 
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12- Subscription and Annual Membership Fees

The Center collects subscription fees from its members: the public shareholding companies 
and financial services companies licensed to practice brokerage and/or custodianship 
services.  These fees are calculated at a rate of (0.05%) of subscribed capital for a maximum 
of JD 5,000.  The annual membership fees for each category of members are as follows: 

JD

Public shareholding companies (According to the Center’s proceed by-laws) -

Financial services companies licensed to practice brokerage services 500

Financial services companies licensed to practice custodial activities  500

13- Commissions of Securities Transfer of Ownership 
This item consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Transfer of ownership - traded securities 13,512,476 3,035,807

Transfer of ownership – non-traded securities 25,540 41,975

Transfer of ownership – inter – family and inheritance 1,283,166 138,295

Transfer of ownership – Dividing Joint Ownership 8,749 16,569

Transfer of ownership – suspended securities 129,428 21,013

Transfer of ownership – Decision of Jordan Securities 
Commission 

55,495 10

Other transfers 2,326 436

15,017,180 3,254,105

14- Charges Fees, and Fines 
This item includes the following:

For the Year Ended December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Fines on short sales  327,801 72,128

Direct electronic connection with the Center 34,000 6,650

Charges on transfers, adjustment, and services 3,047 2,663

Returned contracts and price differences 25,164 1,143

Accounts opening charges 14,623 5,397

Charges for settlement bank transfer 2,425 0

Charges for securities owners 16,331 0

Securities issuers fines 21,515 295

444,906 88,276
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15- General and Administrative Expenses:
This item consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31

2005 2004

JD JD

Salaries and wages 431,311 305,078

Social Security contributions 40,295 31,284

Provident Fund contribution 22,004 18,157

Health, life, accidents and fire insurance 25,163 21,272

Subscriptions to international and Arab organizations and unions  10,667 11,299

Travel expenses 61,808 42,947

Training expenses 6,966 7,042

Stationery and printing 46,465 35,354

Telephone, fax, electricity and water 71,830 57,802

Board of Directors’ remuneration 32,333 32,857

Board of Directors transportation 18,692 15,900

Chairman of the Board of Directors fees 14,257 15,000

Board of Directors secretary fees 2,100 2,100

Professional, consultation and expertise fees 13,310 7,382

Entertainment 17,673 8,530

Premises preparation expenses  19,757 3,936

Advertisements and publications   90,692 8,702

Security  6,279 5,646

Cleaning expenses 4,961 4,016

Maintenance 16,961 17,598

Vehicles expenses 13,865 10,534

Depreciation * 176,471 118,009

Rents (Housing Bank Complex) 4,410 4,410

Provision for doubtful debts  21,236 6,250

Heating and air-conditioning 1,856 1,382

Computer and software expenses  50,222 47,526

Uniforms 2,278 1,510

Bank charges 341 185

Donations 9,300 3,625

Lawsuits and claims fees 500 1,688

Membership in RTGS-JO 2,667 0

End of service indemnity expenses 103,779 0

Other expenses 13,303 13,209

Participation and support fees for the conference of the 
International Organization of Securities Commissions 

0    59,002

1,353,752 919,232

* An amount of JD 180,150 (JD 99,318 for the year 2004) representing amortization of deferred revenue 

has been deducted from this item.
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16- Settlement Guarantee Fund

This item represents fees earned on managing the settlement guarantee fund which is 
managed by the Center after deducting all related expenses.

17- Contingent Liabilities

As of the balance sheet date, the Center together with others were defendants in lawsuits 
totaling JD 1,138,387. These lawsuits are still pending in courts.  In the opinion of the Center’s 
legal advisor and management, no liabilities or losses for the Center shall arise in connection 
with these lawsuits.

18- Financial Risk Management

The Center adopts financial policies for managing various risks within a specified strategy.  
Management monitors and controls risks and performs the optimal strategic distribution of 
assets and liabilities, whether on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet, including interest rate 
risks, market risks, credit risks and currency risks.

19- Related Parties

Wages and benefits for management and the Board of Directors amounted JD 181,458 for 
the year ended 2005.

20- Comparative Figures

Some of the comparative figures of the year 2004 have been reclassified to correspond with 
the year 2005 presentation. 
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Sequence Security Name
Total No.

of  Shares

No. of 

Shareho-

lders

Deposited Non-Deposited

No. of

Securities
Percentage

No. of 

Shareho-

lders

Percentage
No. of 

Securities
Percentage

No. of

Shareho-

lders

Percentage

Banks

1
Jordan Islamic Bank For Finance & 
Investment

40,000,000 11,217 36,586,677 91.47% 5,987 53.37% 3,413,323 8.53% 5,230 46.63%

2 Jordan Kuwait Bank 40,000,000 15,944 34,949,831 87.37% 5,657 35.48% 5,050,169 12.63% 10,287 64.52%

3 Jordan Commercial Bank 50,000,000 3,682 49,615,182 99.23% 2,663 72.32% 384,818 0.77% 1,019 27.68%

4 The Housing Bank For Trade & Finance 100,000,000 3,993 95,892,736 95.89% 2,889 72.35% 4,107,264 4.11% 1,104 27.65%

5 Arab Jordan Investment Bank 30,000,000 584 28,306,886 94.36% 385 65.92% 1,693,114 5.64% 199 34.08%

6 Industrial Development Bank 24,000,000 2,803 23,629,889 98.46% 2,221 79.24% 370,111 1.54% 582 20.76%

7 Union Bank For Savings & Investment 40,000,000 5,227 39,799,626 99.50% 2,503 47.89% 200,374 0.50% 2,724 52.11%

8 Arab Banking Corporation-Jordan 34,500,000 6,376 33,552,218 97.25% 2,558 40.12% 947,782 2.75% 3,818 59.88%

9 Jordan Investment & Finance Bank 33,000,000 3,105 32,634,121 98.89% 2,513 80.93% 365,879 1.11% 592 19.07%

10 Export & Finance Bank 72,000,000 3,093 70,575,784 98.02% 2,896 93.63% 1,424,216 1.98% 197 6.37%

11 Societe Generale De Banque - Jordanie 26,970,553 1,301 25,821,251 95.74% 929 71.41% 1,149,302 4.26% 372 28.59%

12 Cairo Amman Bank 45,000,000 1,233 44,868,040 99.71% 1,143 92.70% 131,960 0.29% 90 7.30%

13 Bank of Jordan 66,000,000 9,567 64,395,106 97.57% 4,860 50.80% 1,604,894 2.43% 4,707 49.20%

14 Jordan National Bank 72,050,000 7,698 68,995,791 95.76% 4,944 64.22% 3,054,209 4.24% 2,754 35.78%

15 Islamic International Arab Bank 40,000,000 3 40,000,000 100.00% 3 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

16 Arab Bank 176,000,000 15,456 134,457,360 76.40% 14,096 91.20% 41,542,640 23.60% 1,360 8.80%

Total 889,520,553 91,282 824,080,498 92.64% 56,247 61.62% 65,440,055 7.36% 35,035 38.38%

Insurance

1 Middle East Insurance 10,000,000 285 9,693,784 96.94% 276 96.84% 306,216 3.06% 9 3.16%

2 Al-Nisr Al-Arabi Insurance 2,500,000 4,764 2,373,227 94.93% 1,051 22.06% 126,773 5.07% 3,713 77.94%

3 Jordan Insurance 20,000,000 515 19,689,116 98.45% 495 96.12% 310,884 1.55% 20 3.88%

4 General Arabia Insurance 2,000,000 368 1,944,317 97.22% 243 66.03% 55,683 2.78% 125 33.97%

5 Delta Insurance 3,360,000 77 3,314,504 98.65% 67 87.01% 45,496 1.35% 10 12.99%

6 Jerusalem Insurance 4,200,000 1,044 4,099,943 97.62% 816 78.16% 100,057 2.38% 228 21.84%

7 United Insurance 5,964,218 226 4,257,569 71.39% 181 80.09% 1,706,649 28.61% 45 19.91%

8 Jordan French Insurance 6,000,000 670 5,599,683 93.33% 412 61.49% 400,317 6.67% 258 38.51%

9 Holy Land Insurance 3,000,000 586 2,664,909 88.83% 253 43.17% 335,091 11.17% 333 56.83%

10 Yarmouk Insurance And Reinsurance 3,000,000 429 2,898,086 96.60% 313 72.96% 101,914 3.40% 116 27.04%

11 Gerasa Insurance 2,000,000 47 2,000,000 100.00% 47 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

12 Arabian Seas Insurance 2,000,000 445 1,748,323 87.42% 222 49.89% 251,677 12.58% 223 50.11%

13 Arab Orient Insurance Co 3,750,000 74 3,750,000 100.00% 74 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

14 Oasis Insurance 5,000,000 457 4,926,075 98.52% 209 45.73% 73,925 1.48% 248 54.27%

15 Arab Life & Accident Insurance 5,000,000 573 4,484,873 89.70% 422 73.65% 515,127 10.30% 151 26.35%

16 Philadelphia Insurance 2,994,539 175 2,932,957 97.94% 136 77.71% 61,582 2.06% 39 22.29%

17 Arab Union International Insurance 4,000,000 519 3,212,736 80.32% 474 91.33% 787,264 19.68% 45 8.67%

18 National Ahlia Insurance 2,000,000 319 1,563,680 78.18% 169 52.98% 436,320 21.82% 150 47.02%

19 Jordan International Insurance 12,000,000 708 12,000,000 100.00% 708 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

20 Euro Arab Insurance Group 4,000,000 67 3,708,650 92.72% 23 34.33% 291,350 7.28% 44 65.67%

21 Arab German Insurance 5,800,000 414 5,684,000 98.00% 412 99.52% 116,000 2.00% 2 0.48%

22 The Islamic Insurance 3,600,000 220 3,225,600 89.60% 214 97.27% 374,400 10.40% 6 2.73%

23 The Arab Assurers 4,100,000 337 4,100,000 100.00% 337 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

24 Arab Jordanian Insurance Group 6,500,000 79 6,500,000 100.00% 79 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

25 Arab American Takaful Insurance 5,929,847 392 5,891,797 99.36% 377 96.17% 38,050 0.64% 15 3.83%

Total 128,698,604 13,790 122,263,829 95.00% 8,010 58.09% 6,434,775 5.00% 5,780 41.91%

Statement No. (1)
Shareholders’ Registers Summary as of 31/12/2005
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Services

1
Beit Al-Mal Saving & Investment For 
Housing

15,000,000 2,838 14,656,276 97.71% 2,557 90.10% 343,724 2.29% 281 9.90%

2 Al-Bilad Medical Services 15,000,000 1,169 11,401,543 76.01% 1,140 97.52% 3,598,457 23.99% 29 2.48%

3 Jordan Hotels & Tourism 10,000,000 323 9,737,910 97.38% 209 64.71% 262,090 2.62% 114 35.29%

4 The Jordanian Electric Power 50,000,000 16,420 44,184,613 88.37% 10,415 63.43% 5,815,387 11.63% 6,005 36.57%

5 Arab International Hotels 20,000,000 4,149 19,540,933 97.70% 1,641 39.55% 459,067 2.30% 2,508 60.45%

6 Irbid District Electricity 4,000,000 2,830 3,690,839 92.27% 1,163 41.10% 309,161 7.73% 1,667 58.90%

7 Trucking Federation 1,200,000 527 1,060,363 88.36% 377 71.54% 139,637 11.64% 150 28.46%

8 Jordan National Shipping Lines 8,050,000 1,038 7,926,668 98.47% 827 79.67% 123,332 1.53% 211 20.33%

9 Jordan Press Foundation 6,000,000 1,057 5,761,986 96.03% 1,042 98.58% 238,014 3.97% 15 1.42%

10 Jordan Himmeh Mineral 500,000 447 471,796 94.36% 168 37.58% 28,204 5.64% 279 62.42%

11
Real Estate Commercial Investment- 
Akarco

7,500,000 4,285 7,101,069 94.68% 2,295 53.56% 398,931 5.32% 1,990 46.44%

12 National Portfolio Securities 9,951,216 29,280 9,731,285 97.79% 5,380 18.37% 219,931 2.21% 23,900 81.63%

13
Al-Tajamouat For Touristic Projects 
Co. Plc

14,000,000 1,023 13,059,852 93.28% 512 50.05% 940,148 6.72% 511 49.95%

14 Jordanian Duty Free Shops 5,000,000 58 4,975,834 99.52% 55 94.83% 24,166 0.48% 3 5.17%

15 Jordan International Trading Center 3,400,000 2,843 3,178,247 93.48% 449 15.79% 221,753 6.52% 2,394 84.21%

16
Jordanian Expatriates Investment 
Holding

11,312,858 1,580 11,218,504 99.17% 1,537 97.28% 94,354 0.83% 43 2.72%

17
Resources Company For Development 
& Investment Plc

11,000,000 2,179 10,960,287 99.64% 1,316 60.39% 39,713 0.36% 863 39.61%

18 Jordan Press & Publishing 3,300,000 789 3,189,209 96.64% 733 92.90% 110,791 3.36% 56 7.10%

19 Salam International Transport & Trading 7,000,000 324 7,000,000 100.00% 324 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

20 Mediterranean Tourism   Investment 45,000,000 162 40,647,724 90.33% 136 83.95% 4,352,276 9.67% 26 16.05%

21 Inma Investment & Financial Facilities 3,105,500 2,409 19,434 0.63% 52 2.16% 3,086,066 99.37% 2,357 97.84%

22 Jordan Investment Trust 16,984,994 730 16,858,313 99.25% 706 96.71% 126,681 0.75% 24 3.29%

23 Zarka Educational & Investment 8,475,000 1,263 7,445,371 87.85% 702 55.58% 1,029,629 12.15% 561 44.42%

24
The Arab International Co. For Education 
& Investment

20,250,000 1,891 18,460,221 91.16% 1,517 80.22% 1,789,779 8.84% 374 19.78%

25 Trust International Transport Plc 3,455,200 28 2,391,100 69.20% 13 46.43% 1,064,100 30.80% 15 53.57%

26 Batelco Jordan 6,252,150 28 6,252,150 100.00% 28 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

27 Jordan Trade Facilities 7,500,000 803 7,258,537 96.78% 468 58.28% 241,463 3.22% 335 41.72%

28 Al-Ahlia Commercial Centers 3,878,514 2,818 3,580,132 92.31% 328 11.64% 298,382 7.69% 2,490 88.36%

29 Aldaman For Investment 10,000,000 12 10,000,000 100.00% 12 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

30
The Unified Co. For Organizing Land 
Transport

6,000,000 991 4,914,105 81.90% 714 72.05% 1,085,895 18.10% 277 27.95%

31 Zara Investment (Holding) Co. Ltd 125,000,000 327 124,999,400 100.00% 325 99.39% 600 0.00% 2 0.61%

32 Union Investment Corporation 50,000,000 15,776 49,723,535 99.45% 10,694 67.79% 276,465 0.55% 5,082 32.21%

33 The Arab Financial Investment Co 2,500,000 1 2,500,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

34 Jordan Loan Guarntee Corporation 10,000,000 209 10,000,000 100.00% 209 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

35  Union Land Development Corp. 15,000,000 10,732 14,555,731 97.04% 4,409 41.08% 444,269 2.96% 6,323 58.92%

36 Arab Printers 1,625,000 406 1,369,070 84.25% 151 37.19% 255,930 15.75% 255 62.81%

37
Al-Tajamouat For Catering And 
Housing Co Plc

10,000,000 705 9,984,300 99.84% 694 98.44% 15,700 0.16% 11 1.56%

38 Specialized Investment Compounds Co 17,800,000 2,040 17,712,412 99.51% 2,033 99.66% 87,588 0.49% 7 0.34%

39 Al-Sharq Investment Projects 11,750,000 425 11,573,845 98.50% 298 70.12% 176,155 1.50% 127 29.88%

40 United Arab Investors 40,000,000 11,121 39,499,377 98.75% 11,116 99.96% 500,623 1.25% 5 0.04%

41 Jordan Express Tourist Transport 10,800,000 963 9,180,020 85.00% 805 83.59% 1,619,980 15.00% 158 16.41%

42 Specialized Trading & Investments 2,050,000 324 2,050,000 100.00% 324 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

43 Arab East Investment Co 8,999,202 2,723 8,992,352 99.92% 2,703 99.27% 6,850 0.08% 20 0.73%

44 Jordan Investment & Tourism Transport 7,500,000 1,456 7,299,375 97.33% 1,448 99.45% 200,625 2.68% 8 0.55%

45 Specialized Jordanian Investments 4,000,000 442 3,391,850 84.80% 373 84.39% 608,150 15.20% 69 15.61%

46 Realestate Development 50,000,000 4,417 50,000,000 100.00% 4,417 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

47
Falcon For Investment & Financial 
Services

1,375,000 115 1,371,250 99.73% 113 98.26% 3,750 0.27% 2 1.74%

48 Al-Amin Investment 7,450,075 888 7,431,538 99.75% 877 98.76% 18,537 0.25% 11 1.24%

49 United Financial Investments 2,000,000 204 2,000,000 100.00% 204 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

50 Arab Real Estate Development 3,667,067 327 3,454,820 94.21% 293 89.60% 212,247 5.79% 34 10.40%

51 Ittihad School 10,617,815 668 10,476,498 98.67% 646 96.71% 141,317 1.33% 22 3.29%

52 Jordan Central 4,489,863 225 4,467,291 99.50% 223 99.11% 22,572 0.50% 2 0.89%
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53 Century Investment Group 5,191,560 446 4,276,385 82.37% 435 97.53% 915,175 17.63% 11 2.47%

54 Al Dawliyah For Hotels & Malls 43,200,000 3,257 40,437,989 93.61% 1,920 58.95% 2,762,011 6.39% 1,337 41.05%

55 The Real Estate & Investment Portfolio 12,000,000 2,304 11,976,000 99.80% 2,303 99.96% 24,000 0.20% 1 0.04%

56 Amman Development & Investment 7,000,000 169 6,807,308 97.25% 166 98.22% 192,692 2.75% 3 1.78%

57 Jordan Mortgage Refinance 5,000,000 16 5,000,000 100.00% 16 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

58 Jordanian Job Opportunities Bureau 500,000 8 418,750 83.75% 7 87.50% 81,250 16.25% 1 12.50%

59 National Electric Power 230,000,000 1 230,000,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

60 Central Electricity Generating Co. 30,000,000 1 30,000,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

61 Electricity Distribution Company 10,000,000 2 10,000,000 100.00% 2 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

62 Holly Lands Hotels 600,000 44 1,457 0.24% 7 15.91% 598,543 99.76% 37 84.09%

63 Jordan Telecom 250,000,000 8,212 249,823,159 99.93% 8,074 98.32% 176,841 0.07% 138 1.68%

64 The Consulting & Investment Group 20,937,762 528 18,336,960 87.58% 345 65.34% 2,600,802 12.42% 183 34.66%

65
Barter Company For Investment & 
Transport

8,000,000 299 7,939,284 99.24% 214 71.57% 60,716 0.76% 85 28.43%

66
Petra Holding For Development And 
Financial Investments

500,000 8 500,000 100.00% 8 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

67
Jordan Projects For Tourism 
Development

14,500,000 112 14,500,000 100.00% 112 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

68 Alia-Royal Jordanian Airlines 66,000,000 1 66,000,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

69 Royal Jordanian Air Academy 1,600,000 7 1,600,000 100.00% 7 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

70
Jordan Silos And Supply General 
Company

40,000,000 1 40,000,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

71 Jordan Post 14,000,000 1 14,000,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

72
The Investors And Eastern Arab For 

Industrial And Real Estate Investments 

Co. Plc

15,000,000 1,706 15,000,000 100.00% 1,706 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

73 Arab East For Real Estate Investments 2,500,000 1,144 2,499,649 99.99% 1,124 98.25% 351 0.01% 20 1.75%

74 Bindar Trading & Investment Co 2,000,000 452 2,000,000 100.00% 452 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

75 Al-Isra For Education And Investment Plc 15,000,000 159 15,000,000 100.00% 159 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

76 Petra Education 16,000,000 225 16,000,000 100.00% 225 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

77
Philadelphia International  Educational 
Investments

15,000,000 71 14,451,420 96.34% 70 98.59% 548,580 3.66% 1 1.41%

78 Darwish Khalili & Sons 6,000,000 308 6,000,000 100.00% 308 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

79
International Brokerage & Financial 
Markets

19,901,979 3,545 19,720,395 99.09% 3,509 98.98% 181,584 0.91% 36 1.02%

80
International Arabian Development & 
Investment Trading

7,000,000 1,052 7,000,000 100.00% 1,052 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

81 Investment House For Financial Services 6,000,000 1,994 5,999,750 100.00% 1,993 99.95% 250 0.00% 1 0.05%

82
Portfolio Management & Investment 
Services For Clients 

36,877,500 12,947 34,916,782 94.68% 11,783 91.01% 1,960,718 5.32% 1,164 8.99%

83 Building Development & Investment 1,000,000 162 1,000,000 100.00% 162 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

84 Jordanian Real Estate For Development 15,000,000 8,252 12,361,458 82.41% 7,967 96.55% 2,638,542 17.59% 285 3.45%

85 South Electronics 7,500,000 1 7,500,000 100.00% 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

86 Al-Ammal Financial Inv. Co 7,500,000 59 7,500,000 100.00% 59 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

87
Al-Faris National Company For 
Investment & Export PLC

5,000,000 28 5,000,000 100.00% 28 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

88 Al-Ro’ayah For Investment Company PLC 10,000,000 5 10,000,000 100.00% 5 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

89
International Company For Medical 
Investments

4,500,000 845 4,362,488 96.94% 788 93.25% 137,512 3.06% 57 6.75%

90
Investments & Integrated Industries 
Co. Plc (Holding Co)

3,000,000 12 3,000,000 100.00% 12 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

91
Comprehensive Land Development 
And Investment

5,649,989 1,116 5,391,960 95.43% 566 50.72% 258,029 4.57% 550 49.28%

92 Amad & Hamdi Housing Company PLC 6,000,000 55 6,000,000 100.00% 55 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 1,695,198,244 188,343 1,651,028,159 97.39% 124,817 66.27% 44,170,085 2.61% 63,526 33.73%

Industry

1
Jordan Poultry Processing And 
Marketing

10,000,000 485 9,544,907 95.45% 338 69.69% 455,093 4.55% 147 30.31%

2 Arab Paper Converting & Trade 1,500,000 706 1,407,342 93.82% 344 48.73% 92,658 6.18% 362 51.27%

3 Jordan Dairy 2,625,000 2,938 2,345,336 89.35% 1,598 54.39% 279,664 10.65% 1,340 45.61%

4 The Public Mining 1,500,000 904 1,394,889 92.99% 499 55.20% 105,111 7.01% 405 44.80%

5 Arab Aluminium Industry 6,750,000 3,800 5,262,695 77.97% 1,350 35.53% 1,487,305 22.03% 2,450 64.47%

6 The Industrial Commercial & Agricultural 11,696,942 9,053 9,854,331 84.25% 2,592 28.63% 1,842,611 15.75% 6,461 71.37%

7
The Arab Chemical Detergents 
Industries

1,330,008 524 1,299,280 97.69% 432 82.44% 30,728 2.31% 92 17.56%

8 National Steel Industry 4,000,000 1,265 3,461,225 86.53% 661 52.25% 538,775 13.47% 604 47.75%
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9 Dar Al Dawa Development & Investment 20,000,000 5,879 18,240,281 91.20% 3,943 67.07% 1,759,719 8.80% 1,936 32.93%

10 Intermediate Petrochemicals Industries 4,000,000 2,340 3,897,845 97.45% 336 14.36% 102,155 2.55% 2,004 85.64%

11 The Jordan Worsted Mills 8,000,000 1,319 7,885,724 98.57% 1,232 93.40% 114,276 1.43% 87 6.60%

12 Jordan Ceramic Industries 7,500,000 2,627 6,011,950 80.16% 849 32.32% 1,488,050 19.84% 1,778 67.68%

13 Jordan Paper And Cardboard Factories 7,500,000 1,482 7,180,520 95.74% 489 33.00% 319,480 4.26% 993 67.00%

14 Jordan Phosphate Mines 75,000,000 4,843 74,237,161 98.98% 1,887 38.96% 762,839 1.02% 2,956 61.04%

15 The Jordan Pipes Manufacturing 3,575,000 1,303 3,449,661 96.49% 1,021 78.36% 125,339 3.51% 282 21.64%

16 Jordan Tanning Co. L.T.D 1,500,000 2,559 1,184,401 78.96% 868 33.92% 315,599 21.04% 1,691 66.08%

17
Arab Center For Pharmaceuticals & 
Chemicals

5,000,000 2,429 3,613,762 72.28% 930 38.29% 1,386,238 27.72% 1,499 61.71%

18 Al-Janoub Filters Manufacturing 1,251,758 267 1,157,307 92.45% 225 84.27% 94,451 7.55% 42 15.73%

19 Jordan Chemical Industries 1,636,022 407 1,528,412 93.42% 234 57.49% 107,610 6.58% 173 42.51%

20 Universal Chemical Industries 1,500,000 531 1,412,190 94.15% 320 60.26% 87,810 5.85% 211 39.74%

21 General Investment 10,000,000 297 7,876,339 78.76% 190 63.97% 2,123,661 21.24% 107 36.03%

22 Woollen Industries 1,200,000 719 1,103,814 91.98% 470 65.37% 96,186 8.02% 249 34.63%

23 Jordan Industries & Match 1,800,000 822 1,689,920 93.88% 137 16.67% 110,080 6.12% 685 83.33%

24 Jordan Wood Industries 1,875,000 436 1,758,292 93.78% 220 50.46% 116,708 6.22% 216 49.54%

25 National Cable & Wire Manufacturing 10,000,000 2,254 9,694,229 96.94% 1,762 78.17% 305,771 3.06% 492 21.83%

26 Jordan Sulpho-Chemicals 2,967,610 1,480 2,834,228 95.51% 858 57.97% 133,382 4.49% 622 42.03%

27  Jordan Cement Factories 60,444,460 33,860 56,342,625 93.21% 18,706 55.25% 4,101,835 6.79% 15,154 44.75%

28 Arab Potash 83,317,500 1,972 67,695,988 81.25% 1,442 73.12% 15,621,512 18.75% 530 26.88%

29
Union Chemical & Vegetable Oil 
Industries

4,500,000 2,574 4,463,624 99.19% 719 27.93% 36,376 0.81% 1,855 72.07%

30 Jordan Rock Wool Industries 3,000,000 400 2,779,996 92.67% 181 45.25% 220,004 7.33% 219 54.75%

31 International Tobacco & Cigarette 16,500,000 2,478 15,353,109 93.05% 1,580 63.76% 1,146,891 6.95% 898 36.24%

32 Arab Food & Medical Appliances 2,500,000 4,359 421,378 16.86% 42 0.96% 2,078,622 83.14% 4,317 99.04%

33
Universal Modern Industries For 
Edible Oil

6,000,000 1,046 5,758,385 95.97% 672 64.24% 241,615 4.03% 374 35.76%

34 National Chlorine Industries 9,000,000 1,748 8,811,223 97.90% 1,230 70.37% 188,777 2.10% 518 29.63%

35 Jordan Industrial Resources 13,250,000 3,045 12,829,433 96.83% 1,941 63.74% 420,567 3.17% 1,104 36.26%

36 Injaz For Development And Projects 3,300,000 1,208 1,943,380 58.89% 52 4.30% 1,356,620 41.11% 1,156 95.70%

37 Jordan New Cable 9,760,000 1,703 9,462,665 96.95% 1,264 74.22% 297,335 3.05% 439 25.78%

38 Arab Engineering Industries 14,175,000 28 10,254,800 72.34% 21 75.00% 3,920,200 27.66% 7 25.00%

39 Elzay Ready Wear Manufacturing 10,000,000 3,678 8,032,144 80.32% 1,173 31.89% 1,967,856 19.68% 2,505 68.11%

40
National Textile And Plastics Industries 
Co. P.L.C.

30,000,000 21,362 16,519,524 55.07% 705 3.30% 13,480,476 44.93% 20,657 96.70%

41
Ready Mix Concrete & Construction 
Supplies

10,961,106 1,476 10,907,041 99.51% 1,446 97.97% 54,065 0.49% 30 2.03%

42 Jordan Medical Corporation 2,200,000 15,340 788,351 35.83% 188 1.23% 1,411,649 64.17% 15,152 98.77%

43 Jordan Steel 15,000,000 7,987 12,858,531 85.72% 3,142 39.34% 2,141,469 14.28% 4,845 60.66%

44 Arab Electrical Industries 6,000,000 5,316 5,669,687 94.49% 360 6.77% 330,313 5.51% 4,956 93.23%

45
Middle East Pharmaceutical & Chemical 
Industries  & Medical Appliances

9,869,263 2,817 9,387,584 95.12% 772 27.41% 481,679 4.88% 2,045 72.59%

46 Union Tobacco & Cigarette Industries 15,000,000 4,519 14,871,506 99.14% 2,337 51.71% 128,494 0.86% 2,182 48.29%

47 Rum Aladdin Industries 7,175,097 4,492 6,735,065 93.87% 1,259 28.03% 440,032 6.13% 3,233 71.97%

48 International Ceramic Industries 6,000,000 6,510 5,643,225 94.05% 692 10.63% 356,775 5.95% 5,818 89.37%

49 International Textile Manufacturing 1,000,000 2,830 790,404 79.04% 278 9.82% 209,596 20.96% 2,552 90.18%

50 Pearl Sanitary Paper Converting 2,500,000 1,396 2,475,093 99.00% 520 37.25% 24,907 1.00% 876 62.75%

51 National Poultry 30,000,000 1,321 29,598,693 98.66% 370 28.01% 401,307 1.34% 951 71.99%

52
Comprehensive Multiple Projects 
Company

4,250,000 631 4,157,574 97.83% 333 52.77% 92,426 2.17% 298 47.23%

53 National Aluminium Industrial 9,000,000 2,485 8,488,123 94.31% 1,247 50.18% 511,877 5.69% 1,238 49.82%

54
The Arab International Food Factories 
& Investment

6,000,000 255 5,923,717 98.73% 224 87.84% 76,283 1.27% 31 12.16%

55 Nutridar 8,250,000 2,145 8,109,748 98.30% 395 18.41% 140,252 1.70% 1,750 81.59%

56 Modern Food Industries & Veg.Oil 2,710,000 210 2,441,385 90.09% 103 49.05% 268,615 9.91% 107 50.95%

57
Middle East Complex For Engineering, 
Electronics & Heavy Industries

40,000,000 4,237 39,865,519 99.66% 4,173 98.49% 134,481 0.34% 64 1.51%

58 Arabian Steel Pipes Manufacturing 7,500,000 291 7,158,128 95.44% 270 92.78% 341,872 4.56% 21 7.22%

59 Al-Ekbal Printing & Packaging 8,000,000 455 7,217,185 90.21% 438 96.26% 782,815 9.79% 17 3.74%

60 General Engineering Industries 3,472,771 230 2,522,292 72.63% 71 30.87% 950,479 27.37% 159 69.13%

61 National Petroleum 15,000,000 2 15,000,000 100.00% 2 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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62
Amana Agricultural & Industrial 
Investment

7,000,000 590 6,986,250 99.80% 588 99.66% 13,750 0.20% 2 0.34%

63 Ad-Dulayl Industrial Park P.L.C 14,000,000 1,765 13,998,967 99.99% 1,764 99.94% 1,033 0.01% 1 0.06%

64 United Textile Group 20,000,000 55 19,870,000 99.35% 41 74.55% 130,000 0.65% 14 25.45%

65 Union Advanced Industries 3,000,000 109 2,928,750 97.63% 98 89.91% 71,250 2.38% 11 10.09%

66 Jordan Magnesia Company 30,000,000 19 29,888,000 99.63% 15 78.95% 112,000 0.37% 4 21.05%

67 Jordan Tobacco & Cigarettes 8,166,233 969 8,101,606 99.21% 44 4.54% 64,627 0.79% 925 95.46%

68 Jordan Vegetable Oil Industries 3,000,000 2,320 2,197,832 73.26% 210 9.05% 802,168 26.74% 2,110 90.95%

69 International Silica Industries 2,366,815 87 2,364,029 99.88% 85 97.70% 2,786 0.12% 2 2.30%

70 Jordan International Industries Co. 1,025,743 44 999,465 97.44% 39 88.64% 26,278 2.56% 5 11.36%

71 Alkindi 5,811,800 62 4,626,700 79.61% 56 90.32% 1,185,100 20.39% 6 9.68%

72 Travertine   Co. Ltd 4,600,000 222 4,262,553 92.66% 122 54.95% 337,447 7.34% 100 45.05%

73
The Jordanian Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturing

16,000,000 3,144 15,589,202 97.43% 1,438 45.74% 410,798 2.57% 1,706 54.26%

74 First National Vegetable Oil Industries 4,500,000 292 4,500,000 100.00% 292 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

75 Afia Int. Co. - Jordan 8,000,000 39 8,000,000 100.00% 39 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

76 The Arab Pharmaceutical Manufacturing 20,000,000 22,089 17,531,379 87.66% 11,258 50.97% 2,468,621 12.34% 10,831 49.03%

77 Al Quds Readymix 7,000,000 891 7,000,000 100.00% 891 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

78
The Arab Pesticides & Veterinary 
Drugs Manufacturing

6,000,000 76 5,859,684 97.66% 74 97.37% 140,316 2.34% 2 2.63%

79 Jordan Petroleum Refinery Co. L.T.D 32,000,000 29,315 22,464,235 70.20% 12,907 44.03% 9,535,765 29.80% 16,408 55.97%

Total 871,813,128 258,163 787,771,818 0.903 102,094 0.395 84,041,310 0.096 156,069 0.604

Grand Total 3,585,230,529 551,578 3,385,144,304 0.944 291,168 0.527 200,086,225 0.055 260,410 0.472

Number of Companies 212
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Statement No. (2)
Ownership Transfers in accordance with Trading Contracts Executed in the ASE from 1/1/2005 to 31/12/2005

Shares

Sequence Security Name Number of Contracts No. of  Securities Total Value

No. of Investors Number of

Suspended

ContractsBuy Sell

Banks

1
Jordan Islamic Bank For Finance & 
Investment

66,112 83,033,655 378,433,487.63 7,964 8,116 39

2 Jordan Kuwait Bank 13,636 7,527,512 87,230,940.60 2,331 2,935 21

3 Jordan Commercial Bank 28,244 35,348,896 135,866,852.25 4,379 3,724 41

4 The Housing Bank For Trade & Finance 19,212 21,418,013 339,402,820.57 3,197 3,050 2

5 Arab Jordan Investment Bank 5,356 6,401,639 27,772,260.37 828 974 0

6 Industrial Development Bank 49,018 77,444,384 305,279,950.97 4,888 4,808 19

7 Union Bank For Savings & Investment 15,811 20,260,523 211,596,359.57 2,671 2,485 6

8 Arab Banking Corporation - Jordan 5,490 3,691,703 19,712,039.55 1,102 1,332 5

9 Jordan Investment & Finance Bank 26,571 39,583,359 219,535,938.50 3,059 3,025 7

10 Export & Finance Bank 31,765 37,011,210 210,457,918.15 5,216 3,973 67

11 Societe Generale De Banque - Jordanie 21,277 49,129,499 128,631,604.26 3,101 3,114 21

12 Cairo Amman Bank 26,269 24,976,262 272,030,289.88 3,676 3,344 16

13 Bank of Jordan 29,209 32,339,325 235,513,123.18 4,236 3,916 32

14 Jordan National Bank 14,205 19,646,449 120,159,699.35 2,724 2,406 6

15 Arab Bank 148,967 54,170,935 3,347,622,166.80 16,635 10,608 43

Total 501,142 511,983,364 6,039,245,451.63 66,007 57,810 325

Insurance

1 Middle East Insurance 3,053 2,538,447 16,885,618.60 617 517 2

2 Al-Nisr Al-Arabi Insurance 922 259,089 1,904,030.39 257 318 1

3 Jordan Insurance 2,956 2,109,427 20,045,779.46 678 619 6

4 General Arabia Insurance 139 1,231,703 4,744,840.28 32 58 0

5 Delta Insurance 157 219,355 593,428.31 36 36 0

6 Jerusalem Insurance 369 150,694 474,939.29 64 158 0

7 United Insurance 780 349,789 1,169,755.39 147 138 1

8 Jordan French Insurance 1,969 1,736,422 6,130,119.49 393 417 0

9 Holy Land Insurance 363 412,522 929,320.00 85 77 2

10 Yarmouk Insurance And Reinsurance 747 631,624 3,620,917.15 142 139 1

11 Gerasa Insurance 52 919,512 2,046,626.33 12 28 0

12 Arabian Seas Insurance 1,430 1,899,034 4,552,056.54 357 400 2

13 Arab Orient Insurance Co. 158 679,830 3,760,170.91 62 57 0

14 Oasis Insurance 5,044 9,970,042 27,842,985.31 927 1,017 2

15 Arab Life & Accident Insurance 334 711,141 3,112,669.49 57 114 2

16 Philadelphia Insurance 284 309,426 808,135.18 63 67 0

17 Arab Union International Insurance 2,887 1,582,559 5,235,943.44 525 442 3

18 National Ahlia Insurance 525 486,322 1,307,892.08 98 127 0

19 Jordan International Insurance 9,677 10,436,545 34,215,572.97 1,497 1,218 3

20 Arab German Insurance 8,424 7,865,211 14,569,088.51 1,209 1,133 6

21 The Islamic Insurance 890 585,145 1,823,565.18 269 218 2

22 Arab Assurers 3,157 2,525,006 6,311,720.71 567 500 1

23 Arab Jordanian Insurance Group 445 849,744 2,132,702.80 104 106 0

24 Arab American Takaful Insurance 4,697 6,594,121 15,607,479.69 1,021 907 8

Total 49,459 55,052,710 179,825,357.50 9,219 8,811 42

Services

1
Beit Al- Mal Saving & Investment For 
Housing

49,567 31,717,333 181,371,622.11 6,309 5,817 43

2 Al-Bilad Medical Services 13,300 10,997,895 37,847,119.69 1,994 1,855 10

3 Jordan Hotels & Tourism 73 121,454 533,412.60 18 25 1

4 The Jordanian Electric Power 23,723 18,905,070 98,615,732.93 3,999 4,179 16

5 Arab International Hotels 1,771 2,137,905 7,868,202.44 323 589 2

6 Irbid District Electricity 677 315,132 1,826,091.50 135 231 3

7 Trucking Federation 757 392,318 820,728.29 145 201 0

8 Jordan National Shipping Lines 8,848 5,957,053 40,077,938.82 1,736 1,418 5

9 Jordan Press Foundation 4,878 1,276,171 25,103,345.90 996 752 3

10 Jordan Himmeh Mineral 9 3,100 12,063.00 4 9 0

11 Real Estate Commercial Investment- Akarco 39,886 65,586,905 118,678,983.60 5,515 5,202 28

12 National Portfolio Securities 29,307 17,353,798 224,139,205.44 4,447 4,002 18

13 Al-Tajamouat For Touristic Projects Co. Plc 3,023 1,876,886 4,745,832.90 813 747 3
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14 Jordanian Duty Free Shops 45 230,404 1,454,017.20 24 23 0

15 Jordan International Trading Center 4,426 4,215,655 5,790,022.42 775 842 9

16 Jordanian Expatriates Investment Holding 25,839 18,949,405 114,148,538.62 3,684 2,949 32

17
Resources Company For Development & 
Investment Plc

23,470 51,880,219 34,504,541.60 3,602 3,200 22

18 Jordan Press & Publishing 639 260,862 1,248,489.17 178 246 2

19 Salam International Transport & Trading 3,900 3,762,925 23,558,044.93 797 661 3

20 Mediterranean Tourism Investment 1,096 6,433,765 17,087,421.89 209 217 1

21 Jordan Investment Trust 15,439 18,553,729 93,216,169.99 2,192 2,275 49

22 Zarka Educational & Investment 791 1,478,946 6,164,417.65 107 370 1

23
The Arab International Co. For Education 
& Investment

5,523 6,378,430 36,239,882.68 824 1,042 9

24 Jordan Trade Facilities 4,811 7,675,396 17,134,928.75 961 876 22

25 Al-Ahlia Commercial Centers 3,548 4,723,394 5,721,458.05 699 720 9

26
The Unified Co. For Organizing Land 
Transport

5,456 7,170,097 13,833,737.52 1,089 997 4

27 Zara Investment (Holding) Co. Ltd 3,794 5,938,725 15,553,969.82 827 788 7

28 Union Investment Corporation 144,042 135,949,839 1,331,219,230.83 13,431 9,766 104

29 The Arab Financial Investment 8,596 7,672,708 75,060,176.26 1,689 1,496 9

30 Jordan Loan Guarntee Corporation 3,124 4,007,466 8,090,923.34 596 485 5

31 Union Land Development Corp 68,906 76,772,193 431,215,324.94 9,073 7,572 49

32
Al-Tajamouat For Catering And Housing 
Co Plc

16,766 22,381,464 28,064,775.56 2,252 2,246 11

33 Specialized Investment Compounds Co 30,090 27,471,596 101,583,190.84 4,468 3,942 30

34 Al-Sharq Investment Projects 7,388 9,829,311 14,916,647.50 1,236 1,377 8

35 United Arab Investors 176,565 147,764,015 1,790,295,446.87 16,557 11,346 77

36 Jordan Express Tourist Transport 17,975 20,720,362 74,991,702.29 2,560 2,303 8

37 Specialized Trading & Investments 4,821 4,416,830 7,728,286.46 956 804 4

38 Arab East Investment Co 73,395 53,991,885 912,314,599.18 6,439 5,625 52

39 Jordan Investment & Tourism Transport 54,107 82,882,083 153,878,724.21 6,085 5,642 22

40 Specialized Jordanian Investments 9,380 10,598,236 15,978,220.91 1,619 1,546 10

41 Realestate Development 63,349 72,390,750 206,123,385.11 8,766 6,963 162

42
Falcon For Investment & Financial 
Services

1,670 1,063,737 4,771,046.57 378 359 4

43 Al-Amin Investment 15,641 15,167,824 83,561,778.20 2,622 2,361 8

44 United Financial Investments 4,706 2,718,091 29,703,447.04 872 843 1

45 Arab Real Estate Development 22,281 28,847,388 69,166,894.11 3,448 3,434 13

46 Ittihad School 9,892 13,757,801 13,761,024.43 1,601 1,665 9

47 Jordan Central 9,205 18,177,613 31,269,431.60 1,384 1,494 21

48 Century Investment Group 10,781 11,803,341 17,276,911.88 1,754 1,617 21

49 Al Dawliyah For Hotels & Malls 20,132 33,453,108 63,701,801.28 2,922 3,090 14

50 The Real Estate & Investment Portfolio 35,446 44,584,165 171,305,791.50 5,390 4,476 31

51 Amman Development & Investment 4,838 8,550,704 11,540,186.39 933 946 9

52 Jordan Telecom 53,561 49,196,596 273,154,660.17 6,806 6,765 30

53
Barter Company For Investment & 
Transport

732 1,118,386 4,476,256.76 292 169 0

54 Jordan Projects For Tourism Development 27 2,690,659 5,796,354.84 13 12 0

55
The Investors And Eastern Arab For Industrial 

And Real Estate Investments Co. Plc
66,368 79,596,433 500,752,080.95 7,387 6,882 56

56 Arab East For Real Estate Investments 17,710 4,988,846 209,545,621.12 2,385 2,011 21

57 Bindar Trading & Investment Co 3,105 2,506,394 9,418,390.18 839 551 6

58 Al-Isra For Education And Investment Plc 910 5,691,669 15,332,610.41 229 161 0

59 Petra Education 1,365 1,376,061 3,119,317.54 397 274 1

60
Philadelphia International Educational 
Investments

105 50,726 183,234.60 27 16 0

61 Darwish Khalili & Sons 3,735 9,436,474 32,160,345.90 1,146 932 2

62
International Brokerage & Financial 
Markets

14,684 8,623,297 48,381,379.04 3,245 3,568 15

63 Inma Investment & Financial Facilities 12,339 18,385,108 51,978,595.15 2,658 2,106 6

64 Investment House For Financial Services 4,632 2,588,224 12,585,449.08 905 1,663 10

65 Building Development & Investment 3,367 4,114,963 21,090,871.85 747 698 2

66 Jordanian Real Estate For Development 4,543 2,396,624 10,093,233.59 680 2,138 9

67
International Company For Medical 
Investments

6,235 5,837,612 8,167,910.37 968 1,214 6

68
Comprehensive Land Development And 
Investment

5,915 8,127,563 18,227,024.16 1,269 1,134 18

Total 1,287,025 1,355,991,117 7,999,278,202.52 169,426 151,925 1,166
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Industry

1 Jordan Poultry Processing And Marketing 4,043 10,528,589 12,209,252.66 910 719 1

2 Arab Paper Converting & Trade 778 555,966 451,816.02 287 259 5

3 Jordan Dairy 503 179,304 667,408.40 78 298 2

4 The Public Mining 237 307,399 2,274,818.90 30 114 1

5 Arab Aluminium Industry 5,016 4,402,503 9,190,170.84 826 1,247 5

6 The Industrial Commercial & Agricultural 30,218 40,408,706 58,390,225.37 3,971 4,020 24

7 Arab Chemical Detergents Industries 2,421 687,351 11,439,081.82 486 435 2

8 National Steel Industry 2,311 1,631,270 3,088,581.01 527 504 2

9 Dar Al Dawa Development & Investment 9,394 6,003,580 40,231,072.59 1,276 1,818 7

10 The Jordan Worsted Mills 7,541 2,961,099 52,067,161.02 1,542 1,189 9

11 Jordan Ceramic Industries 2,727 1,537,340 3,098,576.14 507 629 3

12 Jordan Paper And Cardboard Factories 709 520,252 1,316,256.30 107 236 3

13 Jordan Phosphate Mines 20,052 18,561,458 91,843,113.88 2,838 2,745 60

14 The Jordan Pipes Manufacturing 3,903 2,286,363 8,403,863.29 643 678 4

15 Jordan Tanning Co. L.T.D 1,724 520,475 3,445,902.28 475 456 4

16
Arab Center For Pharmaceuticals & 
Chemicals

683 344,645 984,167.80 153 297 3

17 Al-Janoub Filters Manufacturing 2,991 2,941,964 3,783,809.13 570 602 8

18 Jordan Chemical Industries 563 273,607 1,254,268.53 99 136 0

19 Universal Chemical Industries 1,337 1,197,673 3,145,741.54 219 312 1

20 General Investment 54 96,389 477,262.59 15 33 0

21 Woollen Industries 2,008 1,700,684 2,637,347.10 374 435 3

22 Jordan Industries & Match 146 153,958 219,865.35 56 46 0

23 Jordan Wood Industries 658 280,045 1,100,987.68 127 159 0

24 National Cable & Wire Manufacturing 21,041 21,778,491 75,159,080.60 3,035 2,893 14

25 Jordan Sulpho-Chemicals 5,669 4,783,439 7,252,251.66 1,079 1,062 10

26 Jordan Cement Factories 10,174 11,336,574 150,460,849.46 1,189 3,572 22

27 Arab Potash 9,295 7,932,638 107,060,312.06 1,101 1,630 9

28 Union Chemical & Vegetable Oil Industries 9,875 11,563,442 16,167,170.61 1,482 1,537 7

29 Jordan Rock Wool Industries 1,062 2,369,013 6,297,034.40 258 291 5

30 International Tobacco & Cigarette 23,936 28,279,677 146,088,578.15 2,479 2,618 21

31 Universal Modern Industries For Edible Oil 5,406 7,463,078 12,799,343.77 866 1,064 15

32 National Chlorine Industries 13,538 16,706,891 39,577,777.06 1,768 2,069 14

33 Jordan Industrial Resources 21,935 28,544,454 25,083,298.26 3,200 3,087 15

34 Jordan New Cable 2,330 2,810,758 24,461,950.85 351 504 5

35 Elzay Ready Wear Manufacturing 17,697 23,978,807 33,813,556.56 2,744 2,690 9

36
Ready Mix Concrete & Construction 
Supplies

16,196 12,008,885 54,401,690.02 3,322 2,844 21

37 Jordan Steel 27,194 26,756,221 159,451,806.37 4,508 4,501 10

38 Arab Electrical Industries 1,432 1,903,382 2,772,590.64 343 452 6

39
Middle East Pharmaceutical & Chemical 
Industries & Medical Appliances

3,854 3,493,791 8,999,665.69 662 825 5

40 Union Tobacco & Cigarette Industries 16,388 17,507,972 188,572,052.30 2,400 2,330 7

41 Rum Aladdin Industries 7,719 16,464,320 35,376,986.30 1,542 1,707 10

42 International Ceramic Industries 13,599 21,273,992 27,849,511.27 1,553 1,909 11

43 International Textile Manufacturing 661 721,285 205,963.71 168 127 1

44 Pearl Sanitary Paper Converting 392 125,664 368,815.39 86 152 1

45 National Poultry 687 272,080 602,849.45 170 233 6

46 Comprehensive Multiple Projects Company 3,456 2,844,827 4,729,348.62 746 645 2

47 National Aluminium Industrial 8,418 10,214,344 27,542,569.96 1,434 1,559 8

48
The Arab International Food Factories & 
Investment

1,148 910,949 1,877,656.78 259 282 1

49 Nutridar 2,614 2,794,377 6,569,794.95 527 637 2

50
Middle East Complex For Engineering, 
Electronics & Heavy Industries

88,953 139,271,091 717,601,848.23 9,860 8,311 43

51 Arabian Steel Pipes Manufacturing 2,182 2,750,993 8,765,644.76 491 367 0

52 Al-Ekbal Printing & Packaging 2,262 1,953,509 2,963,899.55 404 441 2

53
Amana Agricultural & Industrial 
Investment

5,346 9,118,988 5,633,690.57 1,163 822 2

54 Ad-Dulayl Industrial Park P.L.C 36,196 44,733,066 64,605,225.92 4,288 3,681 27

55 Union Advanced Industries 163 266,338 1,014,432.35 49 67 0

56 Jordan Vegetable Oil Industries 439 206,027 534,991.97 90 133 0

57 International Silica Industries 973 848,673 1,113,031.58 253 219 3
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58 Travertine Co. Ltd 164 85,614 240,665.86 76 59 1

59
The Jordanian Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturing

7,124 8,937,895 26,327,089.55 1,181 1,246 8

60 First National Vegetable Oil Industries 9,083 13,629,918 24,197,954.13 1,314 1,454 7

61 Afia Int. Co - Jordan 670 3,528,842 12,940,414.64 170 151 2

62 The Arab Pharmaceutical Manufacturing 13,285 9,147,868 63,499,731.48 1,729 3,975 38

63 Al-Quds Ready Mix 12,472 18,265,162 87,302,956.13 2,386 1,920 87

64 Jordan Petroleum Refinery Co. L.T.D 28,692 19,412,950 130,271,053.81 3,836 4,841 38

Total 553,737 655,076,905 2,622,275,885.66 80,678 86,274 642

Grand Total 2,391,363 2,578,104,096 16,840,624,897.31 325,330 304,820 2,175

Number of Companies 171

Bonds

Sequence Security Name No. of Contracts No. of Securities Total  Value

No. of Investors Number of 

Suspended 

ContractsBuy Sell

Banks

1 Development Bonds 51(9.25%) 3 975 9,767.50 3 3 0

2 Development Bonds 52 (9.25%) 1 88 888.80 1 1 0

3 Treasury Bonds 2/2004 (7.05%) 4 2,010 2,116,250.00 3 3 0

Total 8 3,073 2,126,906.30 7 7 0

Services

1 Jordan Telecom Bonds 01 1 6 63,600.00 1 1 0

2 Arab International Hotels Bonds 02 1 10 52,500.00 1 1 0

3 Jordan Mortgage Refinance Bonds 13 3 100 93,758.50 2 2 0

4 Alia - Royal Jordanian Airlines Bonds 01 2 26 130,000.00 2 2 0

Total 7 142 339,858.50 6 6 0

Industry

1
Middle East Complex For Engineering, 
Electronics & Heavy Industries Bonds

2 14 14,102.40 1 1 0

2
Union Chemical & Vegetable Oil Industries 
Bonds

1 6 60,000.00 1 1 0

3
International Tobacco & Cigarettes 
Bonds 02

2 2 10,000.00 1 2 0

4 Jordan Phosphate Bonds 02 6 21 104,838.00 5 5 0

5 Al-Dulayl Industrial Park Bonds 01 5 96 480,000.00 4 2 0

Total 16 139 668,940.40 12 11 0

Grand Total 31 3,354 3,135,705.20 25 24 0

 Final Total 2,391,394 2,578,107,450 16,843,760,602.51 325,355 304,844 2,175
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Statement No. (3)
Ownership Transfers for Cases Exempted from Trading from 1/1/2005 to 31/12/2005

Sequence Security Name No. of Deeds No. of Shares Market Value

Inheritance Family Other Inheritance Family Other Inheritance Family Other

Banks

1 Jordan Islamic Bank For Finance & Investment 486 81 3 78,903 35,514 2,360 391,807.06 199,665.53 13,638.50

2 Jordan Kuwait Bank 1,010 124 10 58,443 13,908 69,349 631,976.33 152,328.61 848,895.20

3 Jordan Commercial Bank 35 14 3 88,104 5,287 26,370 256,945.03 19,151.95 97,305.30

4 The Housing Bank For Trade & Finance 293 33 14 74,408 45,781 19,440 1,250,490.96 731,688.66 364,142.00

5 Arab Jordan Investment Bank 68 1 4 83,609 500 337 291,710.28 2,625.00 1,678.26

6 Industrial Development Bank 90 12 7 789,289 72,836 103,683 3,270,324.11 297,002.14 372,430.95

7 Union Bank For Savings & Investment 158 73 3 553,118 2,404 41,000 5,763,379.23 24,280.03 434,190.00

8 Arab Banking Corporation - Jordan 228 60 368 5,622 4,221 13,406 28,029.69 20,858.26 82,843.18

9 Philadelphia Investment Bank 59 8 14 8,472 25,642 330,000 4,151.28 12,564.58 178,050.00

10 Jordan Investment & Finance Bank 131 29 21 30,381 40,496 73,718 167,077.89 230,589.39 484,312.31

11 Export & Finance Bank 39 25 0 450,564 61,084 0 1,725,126.10 353,328.30 0

12 Societe Generale De Banque - Jordanie 48 2 2 72,275 700 20,260 179,451.50 1,760.00 48,016.20

13 Cairo Amman Bank 44 2 1 249,980 2,875 6,000 3,436,526.23 25,834.55 78,900.00

14 Bank of Jordan 464 74 39 272,035 53,576 276,193 1,974,631.89 388,739.93 1,856,640.15

15 Jordan National Bank 344 32 73 614,615 50,590 1,650,361 2,838,257.92 244,625.70 8,400,396.35

16 Islamic International Arab Bank 2 0 2 400,000 0 400,000 400,000.00 0 400,000.00

17 Arab Bank 481 188 28 11,820,000 2,008,060 171,340 605,487,116.00 117,610,737.60 11,566,283.00

Total 3,980 758 592 15,649,818 2,423,474 3,203,817 628,097,001.50 120,315,780.23 25,227,721.40

Insurance 

1 Middle East Insurance 6 2 1 388 10,000 37,508 1,823.60 64,000.00 304,189.88

2 Al-Nisr Al-Arabi Insurance 114 14 0 1,217 294 0 5,813.07 1,830.35 0

3 Jordan Insurance 20 3 2 319,244 1,732 142,383 2,291,837.76 17,928.90 1,381,115.10

4 General Arabia Insurance 11 0 0 16,410 0 0 49,252.40 0 0

5 Delta Insurance 0 1 0 0 3,357 0 0 8,896.05 0

6 Jerusalem Insurance 90 18 1 8,592 3,696 174,534 26,105.09 11,754.75 759,222.90

7 United Insurance 14 2 1 20,599 17,481 15,900 72,348.09 80,417.75 49,926.00

8 Jordan French Insurance 18 9 1 26,640 86,247 37,385 83,319.61 258,860.20 115,145.80

9 Holy Land Insurance 34 5 0 3,916 85 0 9,895.42 167.45 0

10 Yarmouk Insurance And Reinsurance 38 1 2 8,916 135 150 53,555.40 884.25 793.50

11 Arabian Seas Insurance 45 0 0 20,327 0 0 71,828.28 0 0

12 Oasis Insurance 74 6 2 10,437 255,064 76,792 33,953.43 910,578.48 251,877.76

13 Arab Life & Accident Insurance 61 4 2 33,705 2,606 1,183 141,254.88 10,057.10 4,909.45

14 Philadelphia Insurance 37 1 0 312,661 53,000 0 873,689.60 127,200.00 0

15 Arab Union International Insurance 30 1 0 13,594 5,898 0 34,788.53 13,152.54 0

16 National Ahlia Insurance 33 1 0 83,049 32,000 0 185,682.05 44,160.00 0

17 Jordan International Insurance 10 1 2 41,320 849 110,040 130,918.40 2,419.65 352,128.00

18 Euro Arab Insurance Group 14 0 0 40,000 0 0 29,600.00 0 0

19 Arab German Insurance 0 1 1 0 1,000 32,250 0 2,130.00 63,855.00

20 The Islamic Insurance 3 0 0 30,000 0 0 91,200.00 0 0

21 Arab Assurers 0 1 0 0 3,200 0 0 5,952.00 0

22 Arab American Takaful Insurance 14 5 0 5,200 3,541 0 14,514.00 16,925.98 0

Total 666 76 15 996,215 480,185 628,125 4,201,379.61 1,577,315.45 3,283,163.39

Services

1
Beit Al- Mal Saving & Investment For 
Housing

88 32 3 59,010 25,354 22,539 272,390.06 120,601.92 161,153.85

2 Al-Bilad Medical Services 30 17 2 21,570 30,060 17,500 67,321.80 98,935.50 47,075.00

3 Jordan Hotels & Tourism 29 1 1 12,919 184 640 58,196.46 883.20 3,072.00

4 The Jordanian Electric Power 1,355 134 25 507,536 84,002 2,487,184 2,573,053.96 423,478.22 11,939,156.53

5 Arab International Hotels 169 21 0 317,615 1,893 0 1,058,702.71 7,267.37 0

6 Irbid District Electricity 199 11 8 5,609 2,659 736 31,742.83 15,230.92 4,086.40

7 Trucking Federation 62 1 0 16,168 9,872 0 30,042.60 20,731.20 0

8 Jordan National Shipping Lines 35 1 3 9,108 404 5,747 56,273.65 2,137.16 33,536.48

9 Jordan Press Foundation 70 11 0 8,384 1,267 0 164,556.21 25,882.06 0

10 Jordan Himmeh Mineral 45 6 0 1,895 618 0 8,204.05 2,725.38 0

11 Real Estate Commercial Investment- Akarco 139 19 2 13,798 17,573 1,772 23,010.98 21,257.42 4,748.96

12 National Portfolio Securities 141 103 1 6,663 3,509 187 65,040.93 42,090.21 1,043.46

13 Al-Tajamouat For Touristic Projects Co. Plc 14 3 1 267 7,072 125 664.72 10,293.60 181.25

14 Jordan International Trading Center 58 12 0 9,838 1,721 0 12,534.96 2,651.70 0

15 Jordanian Expatriates Investment Holding 30 1 1 3,698 10,000 1,349 12,180.85 71,900.00 4,289.82
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16
Resources Company For Development & 
Investment Plc

26 6 0 16,809 27,516 0 10,865.24 18,530.60 0

17 Jordan Press & Publishing 31 7 0 20,072 2,160 0 98,736.02 9,662.60 0

18 Salam International Transport & Trading 0 1 0 0 512 0 0 3,061.76 0

19 Mediterranean Tourism Investment 4 0 0 2,000 0 0 5,700.00 0 0

20 Inma Investment & Financial Facilities 16 0 0 617 0 0 617.00 0 0

21 Jordan Investment Trust 28 10 3 22,047 4,716 15,376 117,869.66 23,804.85 99,944.00

22 Zarka Educational & Investment 44 9 0 21,359 13,651 0 112,033.78 49,645.35 0

23
The Arab International Co. For Education 
& Investment

109 19 0 94,112 20,129 0 380,742.10 70,847.31 0

24 Trust International Transport Plc. 0 1 2 0 5,000 495,000 0 3,600.00 356,400.00

25 Jordan Trade Facilities 56 19 1 6,073 441 1,500 12,466.20 810.07 3,000.00

26 Al-Ahlia Commercial Centers 15 10 0 5,302 1,096 0 6,968.67 1,313.08 0

27
The Unified Co. For Organizing Land 
Transport

42 0 1 7,413 0 10,000 12,295.58 0 17,600.00

28 Zara Investment (Holding) Co. Ltd 4 0 0 28,500 0 0 65,835.00 0 0

29 Union Investment Corporation 122 64 10 184,285 120,520 164,037 1,275,571.06 1,013,127.85 1,451,727.45

30 The Arab Financial Investment 4 18 1,408 5 202,400 2,528,600 78.25 2,920,336.68 36,484,011.75

31 Union Land Development Corp 102 36 10 36,533 10,622 238,905 147,428.76 55,387.42 1,170,358.70

32 Arab Printers 5 0 0 485 0 0 169.75 0 0

33
Al-Tajamouat For Catering And Housing 
Co Plc

28 2 3 11,050 1,458 15,343 12,439.50 1,604.64 16,684.91

34 Specialized Investment Compounds Co 19 3 8 39,597 2,578 762,116 134,634.93 9,276.30 1,790,931.80

35 Al-Sharq Investment Projects 25 3 0 2,162 1,175 0 3,619.92 2,478.20 0

36 United Arab Investors 57 36 15 30,261 453,379 505,228 264,612.37 5,127,775.48 3,506,210.00

37 Jordan Express Tourist Transport 43 1 0 21,650 1,000 0 92,264.28 4,100.00 0

38 Specialized Trading & Investments 6 0 0 53,181 0 0 85,621.41 0 0

39 Arab East Investment Co 43 6 7 39,300 14,825 125,270 500,277.00 134,452.50 2,960,179.80

40 Jordan Investment & Tourism Transport 31 5 1 8,279 15,750 6,000 15,903.69 25,125.00 12,480.00

41 Specialized Jordanian Investments 0 2 0 0 1,050 0 0 1,329.00 0

42 Realestate Development 22 4 6 23,834 8,192 25,483 91,316.63 30,023.24 84,007.90

43 Al-Amin Investment 18 1 1 8,300 1,000 2,000 48,541.00 5,550.00 10,960.00

44 United Financial Investments 0 0 1 0 0 5,000 0 0 85,000.00

45 Arab Real Estate Development 20 10 0 4,900 32,855 0 20,314.50 73,974.25 0

46 Ittihad School 24 8 0 71,949 3,548 0 57,062.73 3,122.64 0

47 Jordan Central 14 2 3 20,562 21,000 375,962 43,715.08 25,740.00 939,905.00

48 Century Investment Group 1 0 0 3,500 0 0 4,305.00 0 0

49 Al Dawliyah For Hotels & Malls 46 34 2 46,854 51,577 1,588 78,660.58 64,095.79 2,461.40

50 The Real Estate & Investment Portfolio 5 3 1 500 1,870 6,000 2,010.00 9,539.90 22,680.00

51 Amman Development & Investment 7 0 0 500 0 0 685.00 0 0

52 Jordan Telecom 183 39 5 38,143 43,066 13,426 203,393.05 242,082.40 74,241.52

53 The Consulting & Investment Group 0 7 56 0 54,347 876,184 0 54,347.00 962,406.38

54 Barter Company For Investment & Transport 0 0 7 0 0 156,000 0 0 157,500.00

55
Petra Holding For Development And 
Financial Investments Plc

0 0 9 0 0 550,000 0 0 550,000.00

56 Jordan Projects For Tourism Development 4 0 0 16,211 0 0 41,175.94 0 0

57
The Investors And Eastern Arab For 
Industrial And Real Estate Investments 
Co. Plc

48 9 5 15,438 3,845 94,447 82,051.42 32,365.55 472,235.00

58 Arab East For Real Estate Investments 30 1 0 1,935 940 0 33,734.15 44,659.40 0

59 Bindar Trading & Investment Co 8 4 0 35,000 264,400 0 77,000.00 348,170.00 0

60 Al-Isra For Education And Investment Plc 0 1 0 0 30,000 0 0 89,100.00 0

61 Petra Education 6 1 0 60,952 50 0 151,160.96 110.50 0

62
Philadelphia International Educational 
Investments

0 1 1 0 930,000 5,000 0 930,000.00 5,000.00

63 Darwish Khalili & Sons 0 2 0 0 1,100 0 0 3,509.00 0

64 International Brokerage & Financial Markets 18 22 0 779 9,045 0 4,828.38 47,997.55 0

65 Inma Investment & Financial Facilities 1 1 2 600 4,800 12,000 1,776.00 14,544.00 12,000.00

66 Investment House For Financial Services 7 46 0 294 14,844 0 1,487.64 74,190.83 0

67
Portfolio Management & Investment 
Services For Clients

11 45 51 547 14,649 12,656 547.00 14,649.00 12,900.00

68 Jordanian Real Estate For Development 7 160 10 287 45,671 69,512 287.00 256,004.04 80,012.00

69
Comprehensive Land Development And 
Investment

23 0 0 5,647 0 0 13,673.75 0 0

70
International Company For Medical 
Investments

34 2 1 42,050 1,175 3,750 55,989.50 1,868.25 5,250.00

71
Al-Faris National Company For Investment 
& Export Plc

0 0 13 0 0 4,235,000 0 0 5,505,500.00

Total 3,861 1,034 1,690 2,043,952 2,634,140 13,849,162 8,804,382 12,707,978 69,049,931
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Industry

1 Jordan Poultry Processing And Marketing 10 5 0 2,299 371 0 2,239.79 346.62 0

2 Arab Paper Converting & Trade 5 0 0 650 0 0 172.50 0 0

3 Jordan Dairy 250 7 2 6,618 320 187 23,038.35 1,097.78 641.35

4 The Public Mining 83 6 15 3,517 561 125,352 27,129.70 3,962.70 1,061,934.04

5 Arab Aluminium Industry 244 11 21 17,609 3,197 61,042 33,998.81 6,152.73 126,657.01

6 The Industrial Commercial & Agricultural 369 8 10 40,609 15,223 5,895 53,473.42 21,394.29 8,146.47

7 Arab Chemical Detergents Industries 50 3 1 9,331 511 10,000 161,305.70 7,511.00 164,000.00

8 National Steel Industry 57 3 5 22,744 4,550 950 51,602.99 8,286.00 2,005.00

9 Dar Al Dawa Development & Investment 443 52 17 467,834 34,158 24,107 3,181,527.59 225,584.87 154,442.89

10 Intermediate Petrochemicals Industries 53 0 10 1,408 0 554,859 281.60 0 110,971.80

11 The Jordan Worsted Mills 65 8 1 64,085 5,094 5,510 1,083,547.89 81,432.00 81,713.30

12 Jordan Ceramic Industries 94 20 1 18,223 2,649 4,000 34,976.53 5,401.87 6,000.00

13 Jordan Paper And Cardboard Factories 79 2 0 5,279 167 0 14,696.49 507.85 0

14 Jordan Phosphate Mines 298 26 10 33,887 8,621 173,898 149,520.57 39,074.34 749,469.75

15 The Jordan Pipes Manufacturing 86 4 2 18,405 4,913 345 53,075.57 19,130.51 1,399.60

16 Jordan Tanning Co. L.T.D 305 6 2 11,341 832 308 56,394.76 4,319.42 2,491.30

17
Arab Center For Pharmaceuticals & 
Chemicals

93 27 0 12,856 5,839 0 35,680.61 15,250.52 0

18 Al-Janoub Filters Manufacturing 18 0 0 625 0 0 1,156.25 0 0

19 Jordan Chemical Industries 7 0 0 240 0 0 1,084.80 0 0

20 Universal Chemical Industries 14 1 0 925 188 0 2,327.00 439.92 0

21 General Investment 42 8 0 263,503 11,406 0 1,339,055.18 50,288.96 0

22 Woollen Industries 32 3 0 4,758 1,237 0 8,389.24 1,954.44 0

23 Jordan Industries & Match 6 0 1 562 0 95 970.71 0 116.85

24 Jordan Wood Industries 15 2 0 2,010 200 0 7,753.90 980.00 0

25 National Cable & Wire Manufacturing 163 18 3 14,864 2,524 248,583 53,208.42 8,069.77 686,089.08

26 Jordan Sulpho-Chemicals 59 1 3 10,799 163 1,700 14,171.76 185.82 1,102.00

27 Jordan Cement Factories 2,422 181 692 178,730 24,882 97,244 2,259,099.08 308,800.18 1,274,005.67

28 Arab Potash 151 17 4 8,183 2,330 26,650 106,700.10 32,111.98 366,113.72

29 Union Chemical & Vegetable Oil Industries 30 10 2 7,761 206 710 10,242.51 249.21 816.50

30 Jordan Rock Wool Industries 77 1 6 22,791 565 242,254 55,717.54 1,124.35 808,196.92

31 International Tobacco & Cigarette 64 18 6 37,035 14,363 503,586 177,463.98 71,801.60 2,467,571.40

32 Universal Modern Industries For Edible Oil 46 0 3 7,514 0 81,020 12,924.60 0 125,728.60

33 National Chlorine Industries 73 10 2 10,574 1,757 1,418 23,110.47 3,989.29 3,218.86

34 Jordan Industrial Resources 51 10 0 28,019 16,078 0 24,580.75 15,262.34 0

35 Arab Investment & Inernational Trade 6 0 0 150 0 0 21.00 0 0

36 Injaz For Development And Projects 70 0 19 46,355 0 791,634 401,196.47 0 145,920.90

37 Jordan New Cable 40 25 5 72,622 15,070 1,524,952 109,193.37 142,634.02 13,724,568.00

38 Elzay Ready Wear Manufacturing 0 12 1 0 1,264 41,630 0 1,772.48 51,204.90

39 National Multi Engineering Industries 41 0 3 13,981 0 3,002 1,677.72 0 538.00

40
Ready Mix Concrete & Construction 
Supplies

24 1 0 7,629 280 0 33,732.36 1,428.00 0

41 Jordan Medical Corporation 32 0 0 815 0 0 326.00 0 0

42 Jordan Steel 121 50 24 67,115 67,888 984 355,818.86 374,160.48 6,779.76

43 Arab Electrical Industries 22 15 0 2,096 2,743 0 2,763.84 3,668.05 0

44
Middle East Pharmaceutical & Chemical 
Industries & Medical Appliances

65 23 0 54,052 114,886 0 172,910.79 323,220.88 0

45 Union Tobacco&Cigarette Industries 82 22 4 79,255 50,517 22,687 753,615.00 415,293.22 235,894.96

46 Rum Aladdin Industries 153 43 5 18,529 2,631 1,104,136 33,084.39 5,725.98 2,428,971.64

47 International Ceramic Industries 68 14 6 16,150 2,976 1,376,344 18,649.26 3,736.08 1,527,731.20

48 Pearl Sanitary Paper Converting 18 6 0 926 441 0 2,398.46 1,249.50 0

49 National Poultry 10 25 0 14,511 1,381 0 33,157.17 2,939.56 0

50 Comprehensive Multiple Projects Company 11 15 0 128 570 0 185.60 911.38 0

51 National Aluminium Industrial 52 12 0 30,451 174 0 78,238.99 511.53 0

52
The Arab International Food Factories & 
Investment

7 8 0 109 4,753 0 198.38 8,788.10 0

53 Nutridar 29 13 0 2,742 1,971 0 6,217.22 6,205.44 0

54 Modern Food Industries & Veg.Oil 0 0 5 0 0 1,663,000 0 0 1,197,360.00

55
Middle East Complex For Engineering, 
Electronics & Heavy Industries

78 16 10 1,730,243 22,450 160,064 10,922,825.80 135,265.06 1,026,095.36

56 Arabian Steel Pipes Manufacturing 5 0 0 50 0 0 145.00 0 0

57 Al-Ekbal Printing & Packaging 12 0 0 5,700 0 0 7,937.00 0 0

58 Amana Agricultural & Industrial Investment 0 6 0 0 503,500 0 0 337,915.00 0

59 Ad-Dulayl Industrial Park P.L.C 24 11 0 25,198 1,287,470 0 33,153.18 1,755,447.80 0

60 United Textile Group 0 0 1 0 0 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000.00

61 Union Advanced Industries 6 0 2 40,929 0 4,391 165,510.60 0 19,759.50
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62 Jordan Vegetable Oil Industries 65 0 2 2,729 0 538 6,934.61 0 1,328.86

63 Jordan International Indusries 0 0 7 0 0 19,877 0 0 19,877.00

64 Alkindi 0 0 23 0 0 1,308,999 0 0 1,323,499.00

65 Travertine Co. Ltd 10 4 0 16,611 632 0 19,142.20 1,099.68 0

66
The Jordanian Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturing

84 40 1 25,041 5,261 1,091 83,628.31 14,782.84 2,662.04

67 First National Vegetable Oil Industries 0 1 1 0 120 20,000 0 200.40 27,000.00

68 Afia Int. Co - Jordan 0 1 0 0 1,000 0 0 3,680.00 0

69 The Arab Pharmaceutical Manufacturing 1,029 157 19 118,114 29,207 2,053 771,251.26 198,103.07 14,580.06

70 Jordan Petroleum Refinery Co. L.T.D 2,904 105 38 656,956 62,029 109,947 4,139,400.57 388,111.86 608,055.75

Total 10,922 1,093 995 4,384,775 2,342,119 12,325,042 27,213,932.57 5,061,560.77 32,564,659.04

Grand Total For Shares 19,429 2,961 3,292 23,074,760 7,879,918 30,006,146 668,316,695.93 139,662,634.34 130,125,475.19

No. of Companies 180

Services

1 Public Entity Bonds 10 (9.02%) 6 0 0 30 0 0 3,243.60 0 0

2 Jordan Mortgage Refinance Bonds 13 12 0 2 300 0 200 274,455.00 0 182,970.00

3 Alia - Royal Jordanian Airlines Bonds 01 0 0 2 0 0 182 0 0 910,000.00

Total 18 0 4 330 0 382 277,698.60 0.00 1,092,970.00

Grand Total 19,447 2,961 3,296 23,075,090 7,879,918 30,006,528 668,594,394.53 139,662,634.34 131,218,445.19
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Security Investor

Type

Nationality No. of Investors No. of Contracts No. of Shares Market Value

Buy Sell Buy Sell Buy Sell Buy Sell

Shares

Natural  
Person

Jordanian 35,929 39,762 1,896,631 1,890,183 1,770,865,694 1,783,469,579 10,623,260,480.79 10,752,676,482.63

Arab 3,463 3,365 111,239 105,829 116,763,802 103,926,363 973,527,660.69 939,098,131.60

Foreign 332 356 11,442 10,238 17,468,489 12,876,779 141,867,586.25 112,005,095.33

Total 39,724 43,483 2,019,312 2,006,250 1,905,097,985 1,900,272,721 11,738,655,727.73 11,803,779,709.56

Judicial
Person

Jordanian 544 629 337,583 347,753 584,390,063 609,322,564 4,065,084,123.73 4,338,112,310.26

Arab 82 81 20,136 21,574 55,959,908 38,788,195 487,914,938.34 433,405,144.99

Foreign 72 72 14,332 14,629 32,656,140 28,400,018 548,970,107.51 254,070,316.31

Total 698 782 372,051 383,956 673,006,111 676,510,777 5,101,969,169.58 5,025,587,771.56

Joint

Jordanian 0 68 0 1,081 0 1,207,120 0.00 10,589,569.03

Arab 0 5 0 38 0 86,048 0.00 529,545.88

Foreign 0 2 0 38 0 27,430 0.00 138,301.28

Total 0 75 0 1,157 0 1,320,598 0.00 11,257,416.19

Bonds 

Natural  
Person

Jordanian 7 12 8 19 2,082 2,200 1,108,476.30 1,296,785.20

Arab 1 0 1 0 2 0 10,000.00 0.00

Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total 8 12 9 19 2,084 2,200 1,118,476.30 1,296,785.20

Judicial
Person

Jordanian 7 5 16 12 1,245 1,154 1,826,128.90 1,838,920.00

Arab 2 0 6 0 25 0 191,100.00 0.00

Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total 9 5 22 12 1,270 1,154 2,017,228.90 1,838,920.00

Grand Total 40,439 44,357 2,391,394 2,391,394 2,578,107,450 2,578,107,450 16,843,760,602.51 16,843,760,602.51

Statement No. (4)
Distribution of Investors in Securities According to Trading Contracts From 1/1/2005 to 31/12/2005
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Statement No. (5)
Clearing &  Settlement Summary from 1/1/2005 to 31/12/2005

Sequence
Broker 

No.
Broker Name

Trading 

Days

Trading Information
Trading Volume 

Subject to 

Settlement

 Received Amounts  Paid Amounts

Trading 

Volume

No. of 

Trading 

Contracts

Liquidity 

Reserve 

Amount

Settlement 

Amount
Total Settlement Suspended Total

1 3 Samir & Sameh Bros. For Investment 245 863,158,137.79 116482 817,157,737.79 55,206,433.01 31,568,419.37 86,774,852.38 86,121,951.92 193,880.29 86,315,832.21

2 4 International Financial Center 245 1,778,325,205.59 250136 1,606,788,173.75 89,494,637.52 42,208,608.76 131,703,246.28 152,063,043.25 73,481.20 152,136,524.45

3 5 Trans Jordan For Financial Services 245 343,121,578.00 44884 343,121,578.00 12,308,290.17 14,379,548.37 26,687,838.54 18,637,880.25 4,126.29 18,642,006.54

4 6
The Financial Investment 
Company For Shares And Bonds

244 186,285,103.87 59520 186,236,562.77 10,812,824.41 6,578,868.09 17,391,692.50 17,112,043.67 120,676.16 17,232,719.83

5 7 Shareco Brokerage Co .Ltd 245 1,376,985,155.52 230241 1,371,504,078.96 78,042,775.20 37,243,444.11 115,286,219.31 123,179,764.36 258,863.77 123,438,628.13

6 8 Tanmia Securities Co 245 596,101,592.46 128914 593,283,619.26 24,786,788.26 17,461,111.44 42,247,899.70 51,174,813.68 36,572.50 51,211,386.18

7 10
Union Bank For Savings And 
Investment

245 1,028,871,934.71 63397 936,419,970.69 52,902,670.21 44,137,875.95 97,040,546.16 134,736,763.37 49,280.00 134,786,043.37

8 12
Arab Co-Operation Financial 
Investment

245 1,240,116,501.20 185954 1,234,369,022.06 67,696,592.69 38,808,769.49 106,505,362.18 110,659,979.71 489,746.65 111,149,726.36

9 14 Al-Ammal Financial Inv. Co 245 860,524,154.60 127677 860,408,848.40 26,579,460.62 17,556,076.52 44,135,537.14 53,488,864.63 65,579.31 53,554,443.94

10 16 United Financial Investments Plc 245 1,382,528,477.24 188952 1,366,740,314.73 69,898,703.20 38,453,217.01 108,351,920.21 129,825,012.23 126,468.29 129,951,480.52

11 19 The Arab Financial Investment 245 2,983,245,735.58 259188 2,890,147,019.30 66,151,443.89 49,186,817.69 115,338,261.58 170,852,575.74 7,640.00 170,860,215.74

12 21 Amman Investment & Securities 245 144,476,716.71 42493 121,820,961.76 3,757,047.07 5,907,607.10 9,664,654.17 24,166,743.85 3,828.60 24,170,572.45

13 22 National Portfolio Securities Plc 245 1,689,303,992.75 196243 1,665,828,045.75 111,149,787.04 62,112,399.00 173,262,186.04 155,122,665.74 107,762.13 155,230,427.87

14 23 Al-Watanieh For Financial Services Co 245 927,427,048.38 126857 914,178,669.02 48,657,316.21 24,116,830.00 72,774,146.21 95,947,265.54 306,562.39 96,253,827.93

15 24 Jordan & Gulf Investment 245 674,449,891.48 157248 674,153,377.98 23,112,972.78 18,038,847.42 41,151,820.20 33,652,694.48 511,407.50 34,164,101.98

16 25 Industrial Development Bank 245 195,504,229.18 68780 195,499,097.18 12,762,605.85 5,501,269.88 18,263,875.73 30,026,132.26 40,723.41 30,066,855.67

17 26 Jordan Investment And Finance Bank 245 1,493,340,897.23 135595 1,428,848,721.23 111,401,759.15 53,358,670.10 164,760,429.25 146,142,929.14 108,738.50 146,251,667.64

18 28
Societte Generale de banque-
Jordanie

245 122,709,027.80 41640 121,054,565.80 6,963,142.67 5,091,175.47 12,054,318.14 11,073,624.06 32,703.06 11,106,327.12

19 31
Jordan Islamic Bank For Finance & 
Investment

245 959,709,258.34 174703 904,272,983.71 7,054,139.66 42,499,156.16 49,553,295.82 57,178,292.39 344,472.62 57,522,765.01

20 32 Export & Finance Bank 245 2,560,769,753.94 223065 2,492,601,869.96 133,396,104.32 73,680,604.43 207,076,708.75 218,992,829.34 2,016,986.91 221,009,816.25

21 34 Bank of Jordan 245 303,193,322.88 35653 275,094,752.88 32,061,737.63 25,320,416.51 57,382,154.14 60,585,849.54 24,626.00 60,610,475.54

22 35 Atlas Investment Group 245 1,684,417,760.15 130195 1,109,030,756.94 67,206,031.51 38,362,566.19 105,568,597.70 126,683,923.12 256,299.62 126,940,222.74

23 36 Imcan For Financial Services 245 1,072,979,149.41 197639 1,045,638,497.27 52,318,469.75 28,640,106.91 80,958,576.66 130,286,298.17 317,844.96 130,604,143.13

24 37 Jordan National Bank 245 2,032,660,435.73 242384 2,031,127,864.87 127,012,765.52 104,792,667.93 231,805,433.45 132,644,684.55 366,769.29 133,011,453.84

25 38 Selwan Financial Brokers 245 525,247,238.34 59742 518,623,112.54 8,565,685.19 13,727,069.16 22,292,754.35 23,044,095.05 668 23,044,763.05

26 39 Al- Eman Financial Investments Co 244 606,976,093.15 128566 604,120,121.15 27,839,250.83 20,313,788.88 48,153,039.71 31,524,784.94 428,233.30 31,953,018.24

27 40
United Arab Jordan Company For 
Investment And Financial Brokerage

245 476,615,891.25 85876 476,099,167.25 37,713,582.79 44,736,267.63 82,449,850.42 68,094,426.51 47,113.00 68,141,539.51

28 41 AL Shorouq Financial Brokers 245 209,771,238.75 56793 209,769,122.75 22,903,396.84 10,806,973.97 33,710,370.81 31,143,435.40 10,048.20 31,153,483.60

29 42 Aman For Securities LTD 245 2,642,089,414.62 244726 2,622,522,886.72 125,500,018.32 96,130,008.51 221,630,026.83 182,394,781.03 913,830.38 183,308,611.41

30 43 Alaula Financial Investments 180 455,871,469.38 50370 426,672,187.52 23,001,746.82 20,882,147.42 43,883,894.24 41,644,476.74 107,394.40 41,751,871.14

31 44 Al Reda For Financial Services 175 598,135,573.49 52808 560,274,527.09 63,721,502.57 44,209,083.36 107,930,585.93 125,725,434.66 70,387.50 125,795,822.16

32 45 Al Fares Financial Investments 132 210,969,056.72 51990 210,944,404.22 6,632,911.74 6,279,985.20 12,912,896.94 7,650,466.28 35,825.72 7,686,292.00

33 46 Asia Financial Broker 117 360,852,120.91 32328 356,633,017.23 22,781,726.71 11,434,577.61 34,216,304.32 41,080,716.27 144,210.00 41,224,926.27

34 47 Al-Hekma Financial Services 125 207,991,179.76 46343 207,614,014.86 10,163,882.45 11,110,032.25 21,273,914.70 16,876,287.36 13,841.74 16,890,129.10

35 48
Jordanian Expatriates For Financial 
Brokerage

76 63,212,841.08 13826 63,183,649.48 675,310.70 6,665,390.44 7,340,701.14 8,769,258.06 0 8,769,258.06

36 49
International Brokerage & 
Financial Markets

90 243,834,764.94 32286 236,089,764.94 21,679,699.37 17,604,072.74 39,283,772.11 15,186,844.99 7,356.36 15,194,201.35

37 50
Business Women CO. For Trading 
Securities

74 130,515,300.90 18695 130,502,644.90 1,619,942.63 6,992,475.45 8,612,418.08 7,391,799.04 10,290.00 7,402,089.04

38 51 Shares House For Securities 71 102,585,337.19 13084 101,153,541.39 1,770,676.44 6,407,580.09 8,178,256.53 6,672,453.26 22,804.30 6,695,257.56

39 52
Arab Falcon For Selling & Buying 
Securities

69 44,743,881.95 7747 44,406,354.75 6,698,970.96 6,833,556.00 13,532,526.96 2,596,896.17 12,550.38 2,609,446.55

40 53
Sukook Investment and Brokerage 
Company

73 95,017,272.48 10538 95,005,125.28 11,820,772.33 17,714,374.39 29,535,146.72 14,780,977.18 0 14,780,977.18

41 54
Friends Financial Investments & 
Brokerage

81 137,267,037.25 17642 127,690,660.25 19,918,760.22 22,763,235.03 42,681,995.25 2,045,706.52 116,807.20 2,162,513.72

42 55 Ibda’ For Financial Investment 23 14,378,511.33 2457 8,064,578.33 0 1,554,682.71 1,554,682.71 2,763,741.26 0 2,763,741.26

43 56 Ajiad For Securities 40 35,869,403.78 8446 35,805,642.78 1,568,888.60 4,900,324.26 6,469,212.86 4,709,097.72 4,940.00 4,714,037.72

44 57
Investment House For Financial 
Services

63 55,159,976.13 10904 55,135,998.13 1,832,706.04 6,643,340.95 8,476,046.99 4,391,137.66 13,979.80 4,405,117.46

45 58 Experts Financial Services 21 2,302,308.90 493 2,302,308.90 0 486,168.10 486,168.10 215,504.12 0 215,504.12

46 60
Al-Wameedh For Financial Services 
and Investment

41 19,914,029.10 4828 19,914,029.10 135,224.50 4,782,641.00 4,917,865.50 1,054,163.62 0 1,054,163.62

47 61 Horizons Invest 20 4,228,416.17 1324 4,228,416.17 236,362.49 1,648,243.51 1,884,606.00 269,669.33 0 269,669.33

48 62 Delta Financial Investments 21 4,648,012.29 1390 4,648,012.29 0 1,354,621.23 1,354,621.23 293,132.78 0 293,132.78

Total 33,748,401,430.40 4,381,042 32,306,730,378.08 1,707,515,516.88 1,210,985,713.79 2,918,501,230.67 2,910,675,910.94 7,825,319.73 2,918,501,230.67
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